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A Section 12J Venture Capital Company as defined by the Income
Tax Act, 58 of 1962 as amended

PROSPECTUS

This Prospectus relates to a general public offer to subscribe for:
70 000 “B” Ordinary Shares of no par value at an issue price of R1 050 per share; and/or
70 000 “M” Ordinary Shares of no par value at an issue price of R1 050 per share; and/or
20 000 “UB” Ordinary Shares of no par value at an issue price of R1 050 per share.

The minimum subscription required for participation by an investor in the Offer is 140 Shares, which amounts to a
minimum subscription payment of R147 000. The Offer seeks to raise in combination a total equity amount of R105 000 000.
The minimum amount to be raised in terms of the Offer is R1 000 000. This includes the projected issuing expenses, exclusive
of VAT.

Should the minimum amount of R1 000 000 not be raised in terms of the Offer, the Offer in terms of this Prospectus will
become null and void, all moneys received will be returned to Investors and no Shares will be issued pursuant to this Offer.

Opening date of the Offer 9:00 on Friday, 11 December 2020
Closing date of the Offer 17:00 on Friday, 28 February 2021
Managed by Administered by

-

SUNST* NE GR{;}VEST

Manademenl Company

An English copy of this Prospectus, accompanied by the documents referred to under “Documents available for inspection” as set out in
paragraph 12 of Section 4 of this Prospectus was registered by the CIPC on 11 December 2020 and is issued in terms of the Companies Act
and the Companies Regulations for the purpose of providing information to the Investors wishing to participate in the Offer.
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Sunstone Capital Limited
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number 2017/418473/06)
(FSP number: 48870)
(VCC number: VCC-0101)

PROSPECTUS

Important Information

The Definitions and Interpretations commencing on page 8 of this document apply to this entire document (including
the cover page), except where the context indicates a contrary intention.

THE ATTENTION OF THE PUBLIC IS DRAWN TO THE FACT THAT THE SHARES ON OFFER ARE UNLISTED
AND ARE NOT READILY MARKETABLE AND SHOULD BE CONSIDERED TO BE A RISK-CAPITAL
INVESTMENT.

This Prospectus includes forward-looking statements. All statements, other than statements of historical fact are, or
may be deemed to be, forward-looking statements, including, without limitation, those concerning: strategy; the
economic outlook for the industry; production; cash costs and other operating results; growth prospects and outlook for
operations, individually or in the aggregate; liquidity and capital resources and expenditure and the outcome and
consequences of any pending litigation proceedings. These forward-looking statements are not based on historical
facts, but rather reflect current expectations concerning future results and events and generally may be identified by the

use of forward-looking words or phrases such as “believe”, “aim”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “intend”,

“likely”, “should”, “planned”, “may”, “estimated”, “potential” or similar words and phrases.

foresee”, “forecast”,

Examples of forward-looking statements include statements regarding a future financial position or future profits, cash
flows, corporate strategy, anticipated levels of growth, estimates of capital expenditures, acquisition strategy, and
expansion prospects or future capital expenditure levels and other economic factors, such as, inter alia, interest rates.

By their nature forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on
circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. Sunstone cautions that forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance.

These forward-looking statements have been based on current expectations and projections about future results
which, although the Directors believe them to be reasonable, are not a guarantee of future performance. Actual
results, financial and operating conditions, liquidity and the developments within the industry in which Sunstone operates
may differ materially from those made in, or suggested by, the forward-looking statements contained in this Prospectus.

Risk factors which may cause the Company’s actual results, performance or achievements to be materially
different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by it in the forward-looking
statements include, among other things, economic decline. These risk factors are more fully described in
Annexure 1 on page 37 of this Prospectus.

The Directors and Officers, whose names are given in Section 1 paragraph 2.5 of this Prospectus, accept full
responsibility, collectively and individually, for the accuracy of the information given herein and certify that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, no facts have been omitted which would make any statement false or
misleading, they have made all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts and that this Prospectus contains all
information required by law.

This prospectus complies with section 100 of the Companies Act and the Companies Regulations. The written
consents of the experts and advisors set out in the Corporate Information and Advisors section of this Prospectus
have been attached to the copy of the Prospectus filed with the CIPC. Each of the aforementioned experts and
advisors have consented to the use of any statement made by them in this Prospectus and/or the use of their
names in this Prospectus, as the case may be, and have not withdrawn such consents as at the date of this
Prospectus. The number of each applicable regulation of the Companies Regulations is given in square brackets
after appropriate headings or sub-headings.

This Prospectus constitutes an offer to the public only in South Africa and has been prepared for the purposes of
complying with the Companies Act and the Companies Regulations published in terms thereof and the information
disclosed may not be the same as that which would have been disclosed if this Prospectus had been prepared in
accordance with the laws and regulations of any jurisdiction outside of South Africa.
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The release, publication or distribution of this Prospectus in jurisdictions other than South Africa may be restricted
by law and therefore persons who are subject to the laws of any jurisdiction other than South Africa should inform
themselves about, and observe any applicable requirements. Any failure to comply with the applicable
requirements may constitute a violation of the securities laws of any jurisdiction.

This Prospectus and any accompanying documentation is not intended to, and does not constitute, or form part
of, an offer to sell or an invitation to purchase or subscribe for any securities in any jurisdiction in which it is illegal
to make such an offer, invitation or solicitation, or such offer, invitation or solicitation would require Sunstone to
comply with filing and/or other regulatory obligations. In those circumstances this Prospectus and any
accompanying documentation are sent for information purposes only and should not be copied or distributed.

This Prospectus is only available in English. Copies of this Prospectus may be obtained during normal business hours
from the registered office of Sunstone at their respective address set out in the Corporate Information and Advisors
section of this Prospectus from 9:00 on Friday, 11 December 2020 until 16:00 on Friday, 28 February 2021.

Electronic copies of this Prospectus can be obtained on the Company’s website on www.sunstone.co.za

Auditor & Reporting Accountants Administrative Commercial Bank

Manager, and
Compliance Officer

PKFOCTAGON GRY VEST @ ENB

AP

Manager Legal Advisor to the Company

SUNST " NE FASKEN
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Corporate Information and Advisors

Business and Registered Office Address

Administrative Manager & Compliance Officer

Sunstone Capital Limited
Registration number: 2017/418473/06

164 Katherine Street

Building 2, Pinmill Office Park
Strathavon,

2196

P.O. Box 1277
Gallo Manor
2052

Tel: 011 262 6433

Grovest Corporate Advisory Proprietary
Limited
Registration number: 2012/223909/07

164 Katherine Street

Building 2, Pinmill Office Park
Strathavon

2196

P.O. Box 1277
Gallo Manor
2052

Tel: 011 262 6433

Company Secretary

Commercial Bank

E.R.Goodman Secretarial Services Proprietary
Limited
Registration number: 2017/091079/07

1st Floor Voltex House

3 River Rd (Cnr Boeing Rd West)
Bedfordview

2008

P.O. Box 9420
Verwoerd Park
1453

Tel: 082 308 2896

FirstRand Bank Limited
Registration number: 1929/001225/06

Group Company Secretary’s Office

4 Merchant Place,

CNR Fredman Drive and Rivonia Road
2146

P.O. Box 650149

Benmore
2010

Tel: 087 575 9404

Legal Advisor to the Company

Fund Manager

Fasken
Registration number: 1995/004675/21

Inanda Greens

54 Wierda Road West
Johannesburg

2196

P.O. Box 652057
Benmore

2010

Tel: 011 586 6000

(incorporated as in South Africa as Bell Dewar Inc.)

Sunstone Management Company Proprietary Limited
Registration number: 2017/666366/07

164 Katherine Street

Building 2, Pinmill Office Park
Strathavon

2196

P.O. Box 1277
Gallo Manor
2052

Tel: 011 262 6433

Auditors & Reporting Accountants

PKF Octagon Inc.
Registration number: 2018/515503/21
Chartered Accountants SA

21 Scott Street Waverly

Johannesburg
2090

Same as above

Tel: 010 003 0150
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General Statements

Prospective investors should consult with their own independent legal, tax, accounting, investment or other
relevant advisor when contemplating any investment decisions described in this document.

The information contained herein has been prepared to assist in forming an initial view of the Offer. The document
does not purport to contain all the information that an investor may require nor is it intended to replace any form
of legal, financial or technical due diligence. The content hereof may not be utilised and/or relied upon for any
purpose other than to evaluate whether you wish to participate in the Offer.

Investments in Sunstone by taxpayers who are not Connected Persons in relation to the Company, will qualify as
a deduction from income in terms of Section 12J of the Income Tax Act.

In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this Prospectus and Sunstone’s MOI, the terms of
the MOI shall prevail. In the event that it is necessary to amend the MOI in order to ensure the enforcement of any
of the provisions of this Prospectus or to carry into effect the intent of this Prospectus, the Directors will apply all
reasonable endeavours to procure that the MOI is soamended.

Disclaimer

The contents of this Prospectus do not constitute and should not be construed as investment, tax, legal, accounting
and/or other advice. For advice on these matters we recommend that you should consult your preferred
investment, tax, legal, accounting and/or other advisor about any information contained in this Prospectus.

The CIPC registers a prospectus in terms of chapter 4 of the Companies Act. The CIPC takes no responsibility for
the contents of the Prospectus, makes no representations as to the accuracy or completeness thereof and
expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in the reliance upon any part
of the contents of this Prospectus.

Warning

Venture capital investments are speculative by their very nature and prospective subscribers should refer to
Annexure 1 on page 37 of this Prospectus concerning the potential risks.

Date of issue: 11 December 2020
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Definitions and Interpretations

In this Prospectus, unless the context indicates otherwise, reference to the singular shall include the plural and
vice versa, words denoting one gender include others, expressions denoting natural persons include juristic
persons and associations of persons, and the words in the first column have the meanings stated opposite them in
the second column as follows:

“Act” or "Companies
Act"

“Administrative

Manager” or “Grovest”

“Advisors”

“Application Form(s)”

““B” Ordinary Shares”

““B” Ordinary Share
Portfolio”

“Blocked Rands”

“Board”

“Business Day”

“CIPC”

“Closing Date”

“Common Monetary
Area”

“Company” or
“Sunstone”

“Company Secretary”
or “E.R. Goodman”
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the Companies Act 71 of 2008, as amended, including the regulations issued
thereunder;

Grovest Corporate Advisory Proprietary Limited (registration number
2012/223909/07), a private company incorporated under the laws of South Africa,
full details of which are contained in the Corporate Information and Advisors section
of this Prospectus;

PKF Octagon, E.R. Goodman, Grovest Corporate Advisory, First Rand Bank
Limited, Sunstone Management and Fasken and/or any one of them as the
context may require;

the application form constituting the acceptance of the Offer by a prospective
investor, agreeing to subscribe for the Shares, which application form(s) will be
substantially in the form attached to this Prospectus;

“B” Ordinary Shares of no par value in the share capital of Sunstone with the rights
and obligations set out in the MOI;

the portfolio of investments created by investing the proceeds raised from the
issue of “B” Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer;

refers to funds that are legally prohibited to leave the country when an investor
emigrates but are still under the ownership of the Investor;

the directors of the Company from time to time, which, as at the Last Practicable
Date, comprises the persons identified in in paragraph 2 of section 1 of this
Prospectus;

any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or statutory holiday in South Africa;

the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission, established pursuant to
section 185 of the Companies Act or its successor body;

the closing time and date of the Offer, expected to be 17:00 on 28 February 2021
or such later date extended by the Company through an announcement released
on its website: www.sunstone.co.za;

the area that links South Africa, Namibia, Lesotho and Swaziland into a monetary
union which is allied to the South African Customs Union;

Sunstone Capital Limited, registration number: 2017/418473/06, a public unlisted
company incorporated under the laws of South Africa, full details of which are
contained in the Corporate Information and Advisors section of this Prospectus;

E.R. Goodman Secretarial Services Proprietary Limited, a private company
incorporated under the laws of South Africa, full details of which are contained in
the Corporate Information and Advisors section of this Prospectus;


http://www.sunstone.co.za/

“Companies
Regulations”

“Connected Person(s)”

“Directors”

“FAIS”

“Fasken”

“FSCA”

“Income Tax Act”

“Investment
Portfolio”

“Investor(s)”

“Last Practicable
Date”

““M” Ordinary
Shares”

“”M” Ordinary Share
Portfolio”

“Management
Agreement”

“Manager” or
“Promoter” or
“Sunstone

Management”

“MOI”

“Offer”
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the regulations promulgated pursuant to the Companies Act;

connected person as defined in section 1(1) of the Income Tax Act;

the directors of the Company from time to time, which, as at the Last Practicable
Date, comprises the persons identified in section 1, in paragraph 2 of this
Prospectus;

Financial Advisory and Intermediaries Services Act, 37 of 2002;

Fasken (Incorporated in South Africa as Bell Dewar Incorporated), full details of
which are set out in the Corporate Information and Advisors section of this
Prospectus;

Financial Sector Conduct Authority, a juristic person established in terms of
section 56 of the Financial Sector Regulation Act, 9 of 2017, as amended,;

The Income Tax Act, 58 of 1962, as amended, consolidated or re-enacted from
time to time and including all schedules thereto;

the portfolio of investments created by investing the proceeds raised from the
issue of Venture Capital Shares pursuant to the Offer;

an individual, trust, company, or other legal entity who subscribes for Venture
Capital Shares;

30 October 2020, being the last practicable date prior to the finalisation of this
Prospectus;

“M” Ordinary Shares of no par value in the share capital of Sunstone with the
rights and obligations set out in the MOI;

the portfolio of investments created by investing the proceeds raised from the
issue of “M” Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer;

the agreement concluded between the Manager and Sunstone in terms of which
Sunstone Management will conduct the administration and management of
Sunstone, details of which are set out in Annexure 4;

Sunstone Management Company Proprietary Limited (registration number
2017/666366/07), a private company incorporated under the laws of South Africa,
full details of which are set out in the Corporate Information and Advisors section of
this Prospectus;

the memorandum of incorporation of the Company, as amended from time to time;

an offer to the public to subscribe for up to 70 000 “B” Ordinary Shares, 70 000
“M” Ordinary Shares and/or 20 000 “UB” Ordinary Shares at an issue price of
R1 050 per share, with a minimum subscription of at least 140 Shares per
Investor, the terms of which are set out in this Prospectus;



“Offer Period”

“Offer Price”

“Officer”

“Ordinary
Shareholders”

“Ordinary Shares”

“PKF Octagon”

“Prospectus”

“Qualifying Company”

“Qualifying
Investment(s)”

“Qualifying Shares”

“Risk Capital”

“SARS”

“Shareholder”

“Shares”

“Subsidiary/(ies)”

“Sunstone Investment
Committee”
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the period between the opening of the Offer and its closing, being from 9:00 on
Friday, 11 December 2020 to 17:00 on Friday, 28 February 2021;

R1 050 per Share;

the members of the Investment Committee and Audit Committee of the Company
from time to time, which, as at the Last Practicable Date, comprises the persons
identified in paragraph 2.7.4 of section 1 of this Prospectus;

holders of Ordinary Shares in the Company;

ordinary no par value shares in the share capital of Sunstone having the rights
and obligations set out in the MO,

PKF Octagon, the Company’s reporting accountants whose full details are set out in
the Corporate Information and Advisors section of this Prospectus;

this entire prospectus document and its annexures, issued on 11 December 2020;

a company satisfying the conditions of a Qualifying Company as defined in
Section 12J of the Income Tax Act;

an investment in the shares of an unlisted company which satisfies the conditions
of a Qualifying Company as defined in Section 12J of the Income Tax Act;

an equity share issued to Sunstone by a Qualifying Company;

in respect of each of the Ordinary Shareholders, 100% of the subscription price
paid for the acquisition of the shares in the Company, minus the highest marginal
rate of income tax for Investors when such ordinary shares are issued (being 45%
as at the Last Practical Date);

South African Revenue Service;

a holder of Shares from time to time;

“B” Ordinary Shares, “M” Ordinary Shares and “UB” Ordinary Shares in the share
capital of the Company, as the context may require;

as defined in the Companies Act and shall include any person who would, but for
not being a “company” as contemplated in the Companies Act, qualify as a
“subsidiary” as defined in the Companies Act;

the investment committee of the Board, appointed from time to time, contemplated
in clause 3.3.7 of this Prospectus;



“Sunstone
Subsidiaries”

““UB” Ordinary
Shares”

““UB” Ordinary Share
Portfolio”

“VAT”

“Venture Capital
Company” or “VCC”

“Venture Capital
Shares”
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collectively, the current Subsidiaries of the Company being, as at the Last
Practicable Date, Randburg Van Rentals Proprietary Limited, Automobus
Proprietary Limited, Truckspot Proprietary Limited and Sunboard Rentals
Proprietary Limited;

“UB” Ordinary Shares of no par value in the capital of Sunstone;

the portfolio of investments created by investing the proceeds raised from the
issue of “UB” Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Offer;

Value Added Tax as contemplated in the Value Added Tax Act, 89 of 1991, as
amended from time to time;

a venture capital company as defined in Section 12J of the Income Tax Act; and

Shares in Sunstone as defined in Section 12J of the Income Tax Act, being
Ordinary Shares.



Sunstone Capital Limited
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number 2017/418473/06)
(FSP number: 48870)

(VCC number: VCC-0101)
(“Sunstone” or “the Company”)

Amaresh Chetty (Independent Non-Executive Chairman)
Avrahami Gordon (Non-Executive Director

Stanley Medalie (Non-Executive Director)

Jeffrey Miller (Non-Executive Director)

PROSPECTUS

SECTION 1 - INFORMATION ABOUT SUNSTONE CAPITAL LIMITED

1. NAME, ADDRESS AND INCORPORATION (reqg 57)

1.1. Sunstone Capital Limited (Registration number 2017/418473/06) was registered and incorporated as
a private company with the CIPC on 21 September 2017. (reg 57 (1) (a) and (c))

1.2. The Company converted from a private company to a public company on 26 January 2018.
(reg 57 (1) (a) and (c)) (reg 59(3)(a))

1.3. The Company’s registered office and primary place of business is set out in the Corporate Information
and Advisors section of this Prospectus. (reg 57 (1) (b))

1.4. As at the Last Practicable Date the Company has no holding Company. (reg 57 (3))

1.5. As at the Last Practicable Date the Company has subscribed:

1.5.1.

1.5.2.

1.5.3.

1.5.4.

1.5.5.

for 69% of the ordinary shares in Randburg Van Rentals Proprietary Limited (Registration
Number: 2018/107504/07), a private company incorporated on 08 March 2018, with its
registered office and primary place of business at 164 Katherine Street Pinmill Office Park,
Building 2 Strathavon 2196, which is the business of renting out income producing movable
assets (reg 57 (3));

for 69% of the ordinary shares in Automobus Proprietary Limited (Registration Number:
2019/115309/07), a private company incorporated on 06 March 2019, with its registered office
and primary place of business at 164 Katherine Street Pinmill Office Park, Building 2
Strathavon 2196, which is in the business of renting out income producing movable assets (reg
57(3));

for 69% of the ordinary shares in Sunboard Rentals Proprietary Limited (Registration Number:
2019/115106/07), a private company incorporated on 06 March 2019, with its registered office
and primary place of business at 164 Katherine Street Pinmill Office Park, Building 2
Strathavon 2196, with is in the business of renting out income producing movable assets (reg
57(3));

for 69% of the ordinary shares in Truckspot Proprietary Limited (Registration Number:
2019/115342/07), a private company incorporated on 06 March 2019, with its registered office
and primary place of business at 164 Katherine Street Pinmill Office Park, Building 2
Strathavon 2196, which is in the business of renting out income producing movable assets (reg
57(3)); and

for 69% of the ordinary shares in Growth Motors Proprietary Limited (Registration Number:
2019/115368/07), a private company incorporated on 06 March 2019, with its registered office
and primary place of business at 164 Katherine Street Pinmill Office Park, Building 2
Strathavon 2196, which is in the business of renting out income producing movable assets (reg
57(3)).

1.6. The purpose of the Offer is to raise capital to expand the Company’s investment activities and take
advantage of its strong pipeline of opportunities. The purpose of the Prospectus is to provide
information to Investors in relation to the Offer.
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2.

2.2,

2.3.

2.4,

2.5.

DIRECTORS, OTHER OFFICE HOLDERS AND MATERIAL THIRD PARTIES (reqg 58)

The Board embraces the principles of good corporate governance as espoused in the guidelines of the
King IV Report on Corporate Governance of South Africa, 2016 (“King 1V”).

The Board is committed to doing business ethically while also building a sustainable company but
recognises the short and long-term impact of its activities on the economy, society and the environment.
The Board believes in ethical leadership as the foundation upon which they create value for their
stakeholders.

The Directors have established mechanisms and policies appropriate to the Company's business in
keeping with its commitment to the best practices in Corporate Governance in order to ensure compliance
with King IV. These are reviewed by the Directors from time to time. Further details relating to the
Company’s approach to Corporate Governance is set out in Annexure 8.

The Board currently comprises two Non-Executive Directors and one Independent Non-Executive
Director. The Chairman is an Independent Non-Executive Director. Details relating to the management of

the Company are set out in paragraph 2.9 below.

The full names, business addresses, qualifications, positions and experience of the Directors and
prescribed officers, all of whom are South African citizens, are set out below: (reg 58 (2)(a))

Name

Business
Address

Position

Occupation

Qualifications
and
Experience
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Amaresh Chetty (reg 58 (2)(a))

42 Fricker Road, Illovo, Gauteng, 2198 (reg 58 (2)(a))
Independent Non-Executive Chairman (reg 58 (2)(a))

Holds directorships on the boards of various companies in which he holds private equity
investments (reg 58 (2)(a))

B Com, PostGrad Dip in Bus Mngmt, MBA from the University of Natal (Durban), PostGrad
Studies in Corporate Restructuring, Mergers & Acquisitions, and separately, Valuations at
Harvard Business School (Boston).

Amaresh worked at First Rand Bank in the leveraged debt division focusing on MBO’s, MBI's
and BEE deals. He thereafter joined Absa where he was a national manager of Specialised
Finance, and an observer at the Incubator Fund private equity investment committee.

Amaresh then joined Circle Capital, a BEE investment holding company, founded and chaired
by Mamphela Ramphele (a former MD of the World Bank) as their investment officer,
responsible for investment evaluation and acquisitions. At Circle Capital he worked on the
Sasfin Bank BEE deal, which was a proposed leveraged buy-in of a South African bank.
Amaresh was at Circle Capital when the billion-rand Medi-Clinic BEE buy-in was concluded.

Amaresh’s experience includes cross-border project finance, incorporating export credit
guarantees (built an aquarium in Istanbul and arranged debt from ABN Amro (NZ) utilising an
NZECO guarantee) and mezzanine financing within the constraint of accommodating thin
capitalisation rules.

Amaresh has worked with one of the largest Scandinavian biotech funds on biotech
transactions, specifically the due diligence, valuation and structuring of acquisition
opportunities in Africa.

Involved in the capital raising of Series A funding (from Richemont) for a Silicon Valley
technology company named Synthasite (subsequently renamed Yola). AOL and HP are clients.

Some transactions have demanded active involvement at investee companies in terms of their
strategy, as well as operationally — setting budgets, determining strategy etc. Amaresh has
been actively involved in these transactions.

Most recently, Amaresh was a director of the current National Lottery (Ithuba). Other
directorships include/have included being a director at a lime mine, various resource
exploration companies and a technology company which owns a suite of patents as well as a
conservation NPO.



Name

Business
Address
Position

Occupation

Qualifications
and
Experience

Name

Business
Address

Position

Occupation

Qualifications
and
Experience
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Avrahami Gordon (reg 58 (2)(a))

164 Katherine Street, Pinmill Office Park, Building 2, Strathavon, 2196 (reg 58 (2)(a))

Non-Executive Director (reg 58 (2)(a))

Holds directorships on the boards of various companies in which he holds private equity
investments (reg 58 (2)(a))

He also holds directorships on the boards of various companies in which he holds private equity
investments.

Avraham holds a bachelors degree in financial accounting and a post-graduate diploma in
business administration. He has been a part of the fund management team for Sunstone
Capital and Decentral Energy Capital since 2018. He has significant commercial experience
from his management roles in a number of private companies specialising in distribution and
manufacturing as well as his experience in the financial services industry.

Stanley Medalie (reg 58 (2)(a))

19 Oaklands Road, Orchards, Gauteng, 2192 (reg 58 (2)(a))
Non-Executive Director (reg 58 (2)(a))

Medalie holds directorships on the boards of various companies in which he holds private
equity investments (reg 58 (2)(a))

Electrical Engineering degree from Wits University and an MBA from Columbia in New York.

After working for Sandoz Pharmaceuticals in the United States of America he returned to South
Africa and has been involved as a founder and shareholder in several listed companies. These
include H. Lewis, a food manufacturer (sold to Tongaat); Pleasure Foods, a fast foods company
with the Juicy Lucy, Pizza Hut and Milky Lane brands (sold to AVI); Bidvest; Chariots, a motor
group including Rand Stadium Toyota and Autozone (sold to Super Group); Armato Foods
(sold to Afribrand); African Media Entertainment, a media and leisure company including Big
Concerts, Golden Gloves, Radio Oranje and Algoa Radio (sold to Caxtons); and Andulela.

His current business interests are substantially in the property market where he has done
several residential conversions in the Johannesburg CBD as well as Industrial projects on the
East and West Rand and a few commercial developments in the CBD. In addition, he has been
the owner of an independent vehicle rental business since 1989 and now has the AVIS
franchise for bakkies, trucks and 4x4 Safari Vehicles in South Africa.



Name

Business
Address

Position

Occupation

Qualifications
and
Experience

Jeffrey Wayne Miller (reg 58 (2)(a))
8 Kinkel Close, Woodmead Springs, Sandton, 2052 (reg 58 (2)(a))

Non-Executive Director (reg 58 (2)(a))

Jeffrey holds directorships on the boards of various companies in which he holds private
equity investments. Jeffrey is also an Executive Director and CEO of Grovest Corporate
Advisory, and Non-Executive Director of the Manager (reg 58 (2)(a))

Jeffrey is a Chartered Accountant having completed his articles at Grant Thornton and has
over 30 years’ experience investing in unquoted companies across numerous industries.
Jeffrey co-founded Brandcorp, which was listed on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange in 1997.

He brings many years of operational and investment skills to the Company. He was a co-
founder of KNR Flatrock, Balboa Finance, Born Free Properties, Eurosuit, Bride & Co., Seed
Engine, Seed Academy and Grovest Corporate Advisory. Jeffrey is a pioneer of Section 12J
Venture Capital Companies in South Africa and is an active member of various sub-
committees of SAVCA and Simodisa, both of which focus their efforts on the South African
Venture Capital industry.

2.6. Company Advisors and Company Secretary (reg 58(2) (b))

2.6.1. The names and business addresses of the Advisors are set out in the Corporate Information and
Advisors section of this Prospectus. (reg 58(2) (b) (i) and (ii))

2.6.2. The Company Secretary is E.R. Goodman, whose name and address is set out in the Corporate
Information and Advisors section of this Prospectus. E.R Goodman is represented by Marilis Janse
Van Rensberg. (reg 58(2) (b) (iii))

2.7. Additional information relating to Directors

2.7.1. Directors shall be elected by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders at a general or annual
general meeting. (reg 58 (3) (a))

2.7.2. Annexure 2 contains the following additional information in respect of the Directors: (reg 58 (3)

(b))

2.7.2.1.

2.7.2.2.
2.7.2.3.

borrowing powers of the Company exercisable by Directors, which have not been
exceeded or varied since the Company’s incorporation, and how such borrowing powers
can be varied; (reg 58 (3)(c))

Directors and prescribed officers’ remuneration policy; and

retirement and appointment of Directors. (reg 58 (3) (a))

2.7.3. All Directors have a term of office of a minimum of 5 years. Further details of the service contracts
are set out in Annexure 3 on page 44 of this Prospectus. (reg 58 (3)(a))
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2.7.4. The Directors’ remuneration will be determined by the Shareholders at general or annual general

meetings. The Directors’ and Officers’ emoluments are set out below: (reg 58 (3) (b))

Name of Director Position Fees

Independent Non-Executive
Amaresh Chetty Chairman and member of the R5 000 per meeting
Investment Committee

Avrahami Gordon Non-Executive Director, member of Nil
the Audit Commitee

. Non-Executive Director, member of
Stanley Medalie the Investment Committee and Nil
member of the Audit Committee

Non-Executive Director, Chairman
of the Audit Committee and
Chairman of the Investment
Committee

Jeffrey Miller Nil

The Board will meet approximately four times per annum.

2.8. Borrowing powers of the Company exercisable by the Directors (reg 58(3)(c))

2.8.1.

2.8.2.

The provisions of the MOI regarding the borrowing powers exercisable by the Directors are set
out in Annexure 2 on page 39 of this Prospectus.

The Company has not exceeded its borrowing powers since its incorporation.

2.9. Management of the Company (reg 58 (3) (d))

2.9.1.

2.9.2.

2.9.3.

2.9.4.

2.9.5.

2.9.6.
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Sunstone is managed by the Manager, whose business address is listed in the Corporate
Information and Advisors section of this Prospectus. (reg 58 (3) (d) (i))

Sunstone Management encompasses an experienced management team with private equity and
commercial experience, including:

2.9.2.1. originating, evaluating and selecting suitable investment opportunities;
2.9.2.2. providing post investment management services; and

2.9.2.3. identifying and implementing exit opportunities.

The Company has entered into a 10-year Management Agreement with Sunstone Management
in terms of which Sunstone Management is incentivised to deliver investment returns for
Sunstone. The terms of the Management Agreement are summarised in Annexure 4 on page 45
of this Prospectus.

In terms of the Management Agreement the Manager will perform the functions as set out in
Annexure 4 on page 45 of this Prospectus. (reg 58 (3) (d) (ii))

The Manager has entered into an agreement with Grovest to carry out certain of the
administrative functions of the Company. Paragraph 3.1.4 below provides more details in this
regard.

The Manager will be paid a once-off capital raising fee of 1.5% (excluding VAT) calculated on the



total capital raised from the “B” Ordinary Shares, “M” Ordinary Shares and “UB” Ordinary Shares.
(reg 58 (3) (d)(iii))

2.9.7. An annual asset Management fee of 2.0% excluding VAT is payable to the Manager, quarterly in
advance on all assets under management.

2.9.8. A performance fee of 20% is payable to the Manager upon the return of Risk Capital to the Investor.

2.9.9. The Manager will carry the costs incurred in evaluating investment opportunities not implemented.
(reg 58 (3) (d) (iii))

2.9.10. The Sunstone Subsidiaries are not managed or proposed to be managed by a third party under a
contract. (reg 58 (3) (d) (iii))

2.7. Directors’ Declarations

2.7.1. None of the Directors of the Company have been declared bankrupt, insolvent or have entered
into any individual voluntary compromise arrangements, or has been publicly criticised by any
statutory or regulatory authorities, including recognised professional bodies, or been disqualified
by court from acting as a director of a company or for acting in the management or conduct of
the affairs of the Company, or has been convicted of any offence involving dishonesty.

2.7.2. No payment has been made to any Director as at the Last Practicable Date, to induce him to
become a director or in connection with the promotion or formation of the Company.

2.7.3. Formal letters of appointment have been entered into with all Directors of the Company and are

available for inspection at the registered offices of the Company from the date of issue of this
Prospectus up to and including 10 (ten) Business Days after the Closing Date.

3. HISTORY, STATE OF AFFAIRS AND PROSPECTS OF SUNSTONE

3.1 History of the Company (reg 59)
3.1.1. Overview (reg 59(2) (b))

3.1.1.1. Sunstone was incorporated as a private company on 21 September 2017. (reg 59(3) (a)
(i) and (ii))

3.1.1.2. The primary investment objective of the Company is to manage investments in qualifying
companies that will generate dividends through high yielding movable assets to be
rented out.

3.1.2. Nature of business
3.1.2.1. Sunstone is licensed as a Financial Services Provider in terms of Section 8 of FAIS
under license number 48870. A copy of the FSCA license is attached as Annexure 5 on
page 46 of this Prospectus.
3.1.2.2. Sunstone is also registered with SARS as a Venture Capital Company in terms of
Section 12J of the Income Tax Act under reference number VCC-0101. A copy of the
FSCA license is attached as Annexure 9 on page 60 of this Prospectus.

3.1.2.3. Sunstone does not fall within the ambit of the Collective Investment Schemes Control
Act 45 of 2002.

3.1.3. The Manager

3.1.3.1. Sunstone Management is the management company of Sunstone. The Directors of
Sunstone Management are Stanley Medalie and Jeffrey Miller.

3.1.3.2. Sunstone has entered into a 10-year Management Agreement with Sunstone
Management. The salient terms of such Management Agreement are contained in
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3.1.4.

Annexure 4 on page 45 of this Prospectus.

Grovest
3.1.4.1. Grovest is the Administrative Manager of the Manager.
3.1.4.2. Grovest is responsible for, inter alia:

e setting up and maintaining the Section 12J Venture Capital Company structure;
e compliance monitoring;

¢ key individual functions;

e« monthly accounting and audit preparation;

e FSCA and SARS reporting; and

e Corporate Advisory.

3.2 Material changes (reg 59(3) (b))

As at the Last Practicable Date, other than the subscriptions mentioned in paragraph 1.5 above,
there are no other material changes in the assets and liabilities of the Company which have
occurred between the date of incorporation and the date of this Prospectus.

3.3 Prospects (reg 59 (3) (c) (i)

3.3.1

3.3.1.1

3.3.1.2

3.3.1.3

3.3.14

3.3.2

3.3.21
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Investment Objectives

“B” Ordinary Shares

Sunstone will subscribe for qualifying shares in Qualifying Companies that seek to generate
stable monthly rentals off the back of a diversified portfolio of high liquid operating assets. The
objective is to generate dependable returns through asset backed investments with minimal
exposure to the operational upside and downside of the assets performance. Through the wealth
of knowledge and industry specific experience possessed by the Directors and the operators,
the Company has identified unique opportunities that allow for rapid deployment of capital.

“M” Ordinary Shares

Sunstone will subscribe for qualifying shares in Qualifying Companies that seek to generate
stable monthly rentals off the back of a diversified portfolio of medical assets which are leased
out to medical professionals. Through its partner network, Sunstone has access to a substantial
pipeline of attractive investment opportunities.

“UB” Ordinary Shares

Sunstone will subscribe for qualifying shares in Qualifying Companies that seek to generate
stable monthly rentals off the back of a fleet of vehicles managed by experienced operators.
Through the wealth of knowledge and industry specific experience possessed by the Directors
and the operators, the Company has identified unique opportunities that allow for rapid
deployment of capital.

These Qualifying Companies have a primary goal that entails the provision of owners and users
of movable assets with a low administrative cost rental alternative for their asset specific needs.
The rental model enables the fleet operator to migrate from the conventional hire purchase
finance agreements commonly used in the industry, which had resulted in high administrative
costs and the cause of major operational inefficacies.

Investment Strategy

The investment strategy adopted by the “B” Ordinary Share Portfolio entails the following:

e The acquisition strategy together with the investment objective is to acquire shares in
Qualifying Companies that will acquire a movable asset portfolio with the intent of using



discounts to purchase assets below market price and, as such, retaining as much value as
possible. These moveable assets include but are not limited to bakkies, billboards, safari
vehicles, machinery and medical equipment. From time to time, these assets may be sold
earlier if an opportunity exists to earn above normal returns to investors exists. This share
class will aim to pay out dividends on a bi-annual basis.

3.3.2.2 The investment strategy adopted by the “UB” Ordinary Share Portfolio entails the following:

e The Investors will have exposure to businesses which specialise in the purchasing and
leasing out of vehicles fleets. The Directors have identified various opportunities whereby
the Company will purchase and rent out vehicles at a competitive rate and rent them out for
a period of 18-36 months. At the end of the period, these vehicles are to be sold at fair
market value. This share class will aim to pay out dividends on an annual basis.

3.3.2.3 The investment strategy adopted by the “M” Ordinary Share Portfolio entails the following:

e The acquisition strategy together with the investment objective is to acquire shares in
Qualifying Companies that will acquire a portfolio of assets to be leased out to medical
professionals on a 18-60 month basis. Asset selection will be motivated by liquidity factors
as well as the credibility of the off-takers. Personal suretyship will be signed on each lease
and a risk based approach will be used when calculating rentals. This share class will aim
to pay out dividends on a bi-annual basis.

3.3.2.4 Asset choice in each of the share classes will be based on both existing customer needs and
the exit value potential of the asset. This may result in the composition of the portfolio varying
over time to optimise returns to shareholders.

3.3.25 The investment committee will evaluate potential returns, the counterparty risk to the rental
agreements and the resale value of the moveable assets acquired.

3.3.3 Investment Process

3.3.3.1 The Sunstone Investment Committee, with the assistance of the Manager, will apply
comprehensive investment processes in considering investments and will conduct rigorous due
diligence investigations before recommending any potential investment to the Board.

3.3.3.2 The Sunstone due diligence (“DD”) process will comprise an in-depth DD which will include a
comprehensive assessment of the customer needs, asset requirements, cash flows, profitability,
legislative requirements, credit worthiness, sustainability of the counter party as well as the exit
value in secondary market.

3.3.3.3 Theresults of the DD are presented to the Investment Committee for final decision making, where
after the relevant rental agreements are drafted.

3.34 Post Investment Management

3.3.4.1 The Board’s post investment plan is to mitigate risk, and as such will on a regular basis conduct
audits on all of the counterparties to the rental agreements. These audits will be conducted to
ensure that all crucial parameters comply with best practice in regard to maintenance and the
condition of the moveable assets to ensure that the fair value of these assets may be realised
upon disposal.

3.3.4.2 Sunstone will ensure that each of the Qualifying Companies adhere to the legal obligations associated
with each asset in question.

3.3.5 Investment Mandate
3.3.5.1 Capital raised will be invested, in terms of the various investment mandates, as adopted by the
Board which currently are set out below. The primary investment objective of the Company is to

manage investments in Qualifying Companies that will generate dividend income from movable
assets to be rented out to commercial operators.
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The Board reserves the right to amend the investment mandate from time to time.

Percentage Targeted IRR ?i\ﬁ;algreame
Investment Type of Fund (%) (%) of Investment
(Years)

Cash on hand, call and fixed 0-100 7 3
Commercial fleet vehicles 0-80 15-17 5
Outdoor media assets 0-80 15-17 5
Medical asset rentals 0-80 15-18 3-5
e-hailing vehicles 0-80 15-17 3
Other asset-backed rentals 0-80 16 - 18 5

3.3.,5.2 Aninvestment in Sunstone should be considered as a medium to long term investment.

3.3.6

3.3.7

3.3.8
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Exit Strategies

The Board will continuously evaluate various exit mechanisms for its investments. The
intended mechanism is to sell the assets in the Qualifying Company in the secondary market.

Alternative exit strategies would include, but are not limited to:

e the listing of Sunstone on an alternative exchange; and
¢ sale of an underlying Qualifying Company.

Sunstone’s Investment Committee

The Sunstone Investment Committee comprises three members. The members of the Sunstone
Investment Committee are Jeffrey Miller (Chairman), Amaresh Chetty and Stanley Medalie.
Decisions are made on a majority vote by members. The committee has a right to co-opt
appropriately skilled individuals as members of the committee as and when required.

Sunstone’s Deal Flow

Sunstone is currently in negotiations with a few target companies and has an attractive pipeline
of deals, which are currently at various stages of completion in the following asset focus areas:

e Commercial Fleet Vehicles — these will be rented out to creditworthy counterparties
with substantial fleets who are looking for a more cost and administratively effective
solution;

e Safari Vehicles — these will be rented out to a company with a proven track record
that facilitates short term rentals on safari vehicles;

e Outdoor Media Assets — the Company will purchase outdoor media assets and rent
them out to industry leaders who boast some of the highest fill rates in the industry.
This is a niche market which is typically challenged with the administrative
requirements around getting bank finance which results in operators not being able to
keep up with industry demand;

e Lodge equipment — a portfolio of lodge suitable assets such as golf carts and
commercial fleets which are leased out to established post revenue lodges.



e Ride-hailing Vehicles — a sizeable fleet of vehicles that will be leased by the Company
to ride-hail operators.

e Medical assets — medical operating assets and equipment to be rented out to doctors
in private medical practice.

3.3.9 Directors’ opinion regarding prospects (reg 59 (3) (c))

The Directors are of the opinion that Sunstone and its investments/Subsidiary(ies) have good
prospects of achieving its investment mandate based on the following:

an experienced, well-balanced, innovative and motivated management team;
a well-developed pipeline of investment opportunities;

an extremely experienced and diversely skilled board;

a rigid DD and selection process; and

active post investment management.
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3.3.10 State of affairs of the Company (reg 59(3) (d))

The historic Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ending 29 February 2020 is set out
below.

The Director’'s forecasts are based on a targeted Capital of R105 000 000 being raised by way of
combination comprising 45 000 “B” Ordinary Shares, 45 000 “M” Ordinary Shares and/or 10 000 “UB”
Ordinary Shares as at February 2021.

Statement of Comprehensive Income

R R R
Audited Public F::;:ﬂ::::
28-Feb-20 Placement 28 Feb.20

Revenue

Dividends received 605 000,00 - 605 Q00,00
Cost of sales -
Gross Profit &05 000,00 - 605 000,00
Expenses 114 205 83 000 197 209
Auditors remuneration 18 113 25 000 43113
Bank Charges 4632 3 000 7632
Compliance fees B734 5 000 13734
Compilation fees 20 700 - 20 700
Directors fees 20 000 40 000 &0 000
FSCA levies & 662 - & 662
Insurance 30 730 - 30 730
Secretarial Fees 4 638 10 D00 14 638
Interest Income - Note 1 139951 4654 125 4784 076
Fair value gains (losses) 485 642 - 495 642
Total Interest 635 593 4 (54 125 5289718
Profit Before Tax 1126384 4571125 5 697 509
Taxation - 118231 - 1279915 - 1598146
Profit/{Loss) for the financial period 1008 153 3291 210 4 799 363
Share Capital of The Company 24902 100 000 124 902
- Total Ordinary Shares 11 158 - 11 158
- Total "B" Ordinary Shares 11012 45 000 56012
- Total "M" Ordinary Shares - 45 000 45 000
- Total "UB" Ordinary Shares 2732 10 000 12732

Notes

e Included in the public placement adjustment column is financial income of 4.5% p.a. for 12
months and a pro forma adjustment for the operating expenses of Sunstone on the assumption
that the Company has been in operation for 12 months.

e The EPS and NAV calculations have been split proportionately based on the assumptions 45 000 “B”
Ordinary Shares, 45 000 “M” Ordinary Shares and 10 000 “UB” Ordinary Shares to the amount of
capital raised in each share class on offer.
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3.3.11
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Pro forma statement of financial position before and after the Offer

The audited statement of financial position of Sunstone at 29 February 2020, assuming the Offer
is fully subscribed are set out below.

Sunstone Capital Limited
Statement of Financial Position

Asset

Non-Current Assets

Investment: Randburg Wan Rentals 65%
Inwestment: Automobus 55%
Inwestment: Truckspot 65%

Inwestment: Sunboard Rentals 659%
Inwestment: Growth Motors 59%

Current Assets
Trade and Other Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

Equity And Liabilities
Equity

Ordinary Shares

"B” Ordinary Shares
"UB" Ordinary Shares
"M” Ordinary Shares
Retained Income

Profit and Loss

Non-Current Liabilities
Loans from Qualifying Companies
Deferred Tax

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade Pavablez
Dividend Payable

Total Equity and Liabilities

Share Capital of the Company
Number of Shares Authorised
Crdinary Shares

"B" Ordinary Shares

"M" Ordinary Shares

"5" Ordinary Shares

"W" Ordinary Shares

"UB" Crdinary Shares
Unclassified Shares

Number of Shares lssued

- Total Ordinary Shares
-Total "B" Ordinary Shares
-Total "M" Ordinary Shares
-Total "UB" Ordinary Shares
NAV Per Share

-Ordinary Shares

-"B" Ordinary Shares

-"M" Ordinary Shares
-"UB" Crdinary Shares

R R R
Audited Public i?::epm“ 2'::
28-Feb-20 Placement 98-Feb-20
11 682 642 - 11 682 642
3127 642 B 3 127 642
2 090 000 - 2 090 000
2 650 000 - 2 650 000
2 909 500 - 2 909 500
905 500 - 905 500
13 524 722 103 425 000 116 949 722
110 000 B 110 000
13 414722 103 425 000 116 839 722
25 207 364 103 425 000 128 632 364
24 756 928 103 425 000 128 181 928
10 441 609 B 10 441 609
11 562 600 46 541 250 58 103 850
2 313 600 10 342 500 13161 100
- 46 541 250 46 541 250
391 725 - 391 725
87 448 82 448
87 448 - 87 448
367 983 - 367 983
146 025 B 148 025
221 963 - 221 963
25 207 364 103 425 000 128 632 364
1000000 1000000 1000000
100000 100000 100000
100000 100000 100000
100000 100 000 100 000
100000 100000 100000
100000 100000 100000
500000 500 000 500 000
11158 R 11158
11012 45 000 56012
R 45 000 45000
2732 10000 12732
a7 R 971
1017 1034 1037
1034 1034
399 1034 1034




3.3.12

3.3.13

3.3.14
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Notes:
Stated Capital — Shares
Assuming 45 000 “B” Ordinary Shares, 45 000 “M” Ordinary Shares and/or 10 000 “UB” Ordinary
Shares have been issued at R1 050 per share:

R105 000 000
Share issue costs of 1.5% have been set off capital raise: R 1575000

R103 425 000
Principal immovable property owned (reg 59(3) (e))

3.3.12.1 There are no immovable properties owned by the Company and/or the Sunstone
Subsidiary/(ies).

3.3.12.2 The Company has entered into a lease agreement for the rental of its premises situated
at 164 Katherine Street, Building 2, Pinmill Office Park, Strathavon, 2196.

3.3.12.3 The lease is for a period of 2 years at a rental price of R3 000 per month and expires on
29 February 2020. The Company intends renewing the lease for an additional 2 years,
with a resultant expiry date of 28 February 2022.

Capital commitments, lease payments and contingent liabilities (reg 59(3) (f))

3.3.13.1 Capital commitments
At the Last Practicable Date, the Company has made no material commitments for

capital expenditure for the acquisition, construction or installation of any buildings, plant
or machinery.

3.3.13.2 Contingent liabilities

At the date of this Prospectus, the Company has no material contingent liabilities.

Turnover, profit and loss and dividend policy (reg 59(3) (g))

3.3.14.1 Refer to paragraph 3.3.10 for the revenue, profits and losses of the company since its
date of incorporation. (reg 59(3) (@) (i) and (ii))

3.3.14.2 The report by the Auditor in terms of Regulation 79 of the Companies Act is set out in
Annexure 6 on page 47 of this Prospectus.

3.3.14.3 As at the Last Practicable Date, Sunstone has paid a total dividend of R1 019 869 to the
Ordinary Shareholders. (reg 59(3) (g) (iii))

3.3.14.4 As at the Last Practicable Date, Sunstone has not paid any dividends to “B” Ordinary
Shareholders and “UB” Ordinary Shareholders.

3.3.14.5 Surpluses on realisation of investments will ordinarily be distributed to Shareholders by
way of dividends as determined by the Board from time to time. Dividends paid will be
subject to Dividends Tax as applicable.



4. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (reg 60)

4.1 The authorised and issued share capital of the Company before and after the Offer is set out below
(reg 60(a) (i) and reg 60):

Share Capital of the Company

28-Feb-19 29-Feb-20 29-Feb-21
Number of authorised shares
Ordinary Shares of no par value 1 000 000 1 000 000 1 000 000
“A” Ordinary Shares of no par value 1 000 000 1 000 000 1 000 000
“B” Ordinary Shares of no par value 100 000 100 000
“M” Ordinary Shares of no par value 100 000 100 000
“S” Ordinary Shares of no par value 100 000 100 000
“UB” Ordinary Shares of no par value 100 000 100 000
“V” Ordinary Shares of no par value 100 000 100 000
Unclassified Ordinary Shares of no par value 1 000 000 500 000 500 000

28-Feb-20 Notes 29-Feb-21
Number of issued shares
Ordinary Shares of no par value 11 158 11 158
“A” Ordinary Shares of no par value -
“B” Ordinary Shares of no par value 11012 45 000 56 012
“S” Ordinary Shares of no par value
“M” Ordinary Shares of no par value 45 000 45 000
“UB” Ordinary Shares of no par value 2732 10 000 12 732
“V” Ordinary Shares of no par value
Unclassified Ordinary Shares
Stated Capital (Rand) 24 365 203 105 000 000 129 365 203

Notes
Stated Capital —Shares

The above information is subject to the assumption that 45 000 “B” Ordinary Shares, 45 000 “M”
Ordinary Shares and/or 10 000 “UB” Ordinary Shares have been issued at R1 050 per share.

4.2 The authorised and unissued shares are under the control of the Directors, subject to the provisions
of Section 38 of the Companies Act.

4.3 None of the Shares have any conversion or redemption rights.

4.4 The “B” Ordinary Shares participate equally in dividends declared by the Board which are attributable
to shareholders of the “B” Ordinary Share Portfolio.

4.5 The “M” Ordinary Shares participate equally in dividends declared by the Board in the “M” Ordinary
Share Portfolio.

4.6 The “UB” Ordinary Shares participate equally in dividends declared by the Board in the “UB” Ordinary
Share Portfolio.

4.7 The Shares held by the Directors are set out in paragraph 8.2 below. (reg 60(a) (iii))
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4.8 A total number of 11 158 Ordinary Shares have been issued at R1 000 per share to the public from
the date of incorporation of the Company. (reg 60(c) (i) (ii))

4.9 As at the Last Practicable Date, none of the “M” Ordinary Shares have been offered to the public.

4.10 As at the Last Practicable, a total number of 11 012 “B” Ordinary Shares have been issued at R1 050 per
share to the public.

4.11 As at the Last Practicable, a total number of 2 732 “UB” Ordinary Shares have been issued at R1 050 per
share to the public.

4.12 All Shares issued to the public, from the date of incorporation of the Company, were issued in
proportion to the Investors’ shareholding in the Company. (reg 60 (c) (iii))

5. OPTIONS OR PREFERENTIAL RIGHTS IN RESPECT OF SHARES (reqg 61)

The Company and/or any of its Subsidiaries is not party to any contract or arrangement (or proposed
contract or arrangement), whereby an option or preferential right of any kind is (or is proposed to be)
given to any person to subscribe for any Shares in the Company.

6. COMMISSIONS PAID AND PAYABLE IN RESPECT OF UNDERWRITING OF SHARES ISSUES (reqg 62)

6.1 There have been no commissions paid or payable in respect of underwriting by the
Company from its incorporation date up to the Last Practicable Date.

6.2 No other commissions, discounts or brokerages have been paid nor have any other special
terms been granted in connection with the issue of shares by the Company.

7. MATERIAL CONTRACTS (reg 63(1) (a) (b), 63(2))

7.1 The Company has only entered into the following Material contracts as at the Last Practicable Date:

*+ Management Agreement with Sunstone Management as disclosed in Annexure 4; and
+ Directors Service Contracts as set out in Annexure 3.

7.2 All the material contracts concluded by the Company are open for inspection at its registered
address during normal office hours from the date of issue of this Prospectus up to and including 10
(ten) Business Days after the Closing Date.

8. INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND PROMOTERS (req 64)

8.1. In the preceding 3 (three) years, no consideration, has been paid, or agreed to be paid to:
8.1.1. any Director or related party;

8.1.2. another company in which a Director has a beneficial interest or of which such Director is also a
director; or

8.1.3. any partnership, syndicate or other association of which the Director is a member,
to induce the Director to become a Director, to qualify as a director or for services rendered by
the Director or by a company, partnership, syndicate or other association, in connection with the
promotion or formation of the Company. (reg 64(2) (a))

8.2. At the Last Practicable Date, the Directors do not own any Shares in the Company.

8.3. The salient points of the Management Agreement are disclosed in Annexure 4 on page 45 of this
Prospectus.

8.4. No property has been acquired or disposed of by the Company since its incorporation and therefore
the Directors had no interests in property acquired or disposed by the Company since its
incorporation. (reg 64 (2) (b) (iii))

8.5. The Directors have no interests in material contracts or transactions other than that disclosed in
clause 8.6 below.
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8.6. The Manager may charge the underlying Qualifying Company a 2.0% management fee per annum
on share capital, payable quarterly in advance. The Manager may further subscribe for 31% of the

“A” shares in the Qualifying Company.

8.7. Stanley Medalie is a Non-Executive Director and Shareholder in the Manager and Jeffrey Miller is a

Non-Executive Director and indirect Shareholder in the Manager.

8.8. “A” shares in Randburg Van Rentals Proprietary Limited participate pari passu with other

shareholders in non-capital nature dividends.

9. LOANS (req 65)

Since incorporation of the Company and up to the date of this Prospectus, Sunstone and/or its
Subsidiaries have no material loans payable and had no material loans advanced to any party.

10. SHARES ISSUED OTHERWISE THAN FOR CASH (reg 66)

There have been no Shares or other securities issued other than for cash since the Company’s

and/or its Subsidiaries’ incorporation.

11. PROPERTY ACQUIRED OR TO BE ACQUIRED (req 67)

11.1. Since incorporation of the Company and up to the date of this Prospectus, the Company and/or

its Subsidiaries did not acquire any immovable property or fixed assets.

11.2. Whilst the Company does not plan to acquire any immovable property, it does intend to acquire
assets that are material to the business and the Company will be utilised to procure these fixed

assets out of the proceeds of this Offer.

12. AMOUNTS PAID OR PAYABLE TO PROMOTERS (req 68)

12.1. A capital raising fee of 1.5% on total capital raised is payable to the Manager, whose name and
address is set out in the Corporate Information and Advisors section of this Prospectus, on all

Shares subscribed for in terms of this Offer.

12.2. Inthe last three years, a total amount of R334 740 has been paid to the Manager in respect of a

capital raising fee to the Manager in terms of the Management Agreement.

13. PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND ISSUE EXPENSES (req 69)

13.1  An amount of R173 000 has been budgeted for the expenses of this Offer on full subscription,

excluding capital raising fees.

13.2  These expenses (VAT exclusive) are estimated and comprise the following:

Service Service Provider
Preparation of Prospectus Grovest
Registration of Prospectus CIPC
Reporting Accountants Report PKF Octagon
Auditors Report PKF Octagon
Secretarial Services E.R Goodman
Prospectus Review Fasken

Total

R
R100 000
R7 000
R22 000
R4 000
R10 000
R30 000
R173 000

13.3 In the last three years, there have been a total of R427 310 preliminary and issue expenses

incurred by the Company.
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SECTION 2 - DETAILS OF THE OFFER

1. PURPOSE OF THE OFFER (reg 70(a))

1.1. The purpose of the Offeris:
1.1.1. to expand the capital base of the Company;

1.1.2. toincrease the issued capital of Sunstone to enable it to invest in Qualifying Companies as defined in
Section 12J of the Income Tax Act;

1.1.3. to invite members of the public, financial institutions and business associates of Sunstone to invest
directly in the Company;

1.1.4. to broaden the shareholder base of Sunstone;
1.1.5. to enhance its profile as an asset-backed rental venture capital company; and
1.1.6. to fund the growth aspirations of the Company.

1.2. Any amounts raised in excess of the projected issuing expenses, will be used to achieve the Company’s
goal to increase its capital base. (reg70 (b))

2. SALIENT DATES (req 71)

The dates and times for the opening and closing of the Offer are set out below:

Details
Opening date of the Offer on (09:00) 11 December 2020
Expected Closing Date of the Offer (17:00) 28 February 2021

3. PARTICULARS OF THE OFFER (req 72)

3.1. The Offer comprises an offer to the public to subscribe for 70 000 “B” Ordinary Shares and/or 20 000
“UB” Ordinary Shares at R1 050 per Share, and a private offer 70 000 “M” Ordinary Share at R1 050
per share, each having 1 vote as contemplated in the MOI.

3.2. Application may be made by completing the "Mandate and Application Form" in this Prospectus.
Completed Applications must be submitted to the Company by no later than 28 February 2021.

3.3. Prior to the date of this Prospectus and as at the Last Practicable Date, the Company has issued the
following Shares since its incorporation (reg 72(2)):

Date of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Price at
Issue Authorised Ordinary “B” “m” “uB” which the
Shares Shares Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary
issued Shares Shares Shares Shares were

issued issued issued issued

28 Feb

2018 1 000 000 3 046 R 1 000

28 Feb

2019 1 000 000 8112 R 1 000

29 Feb

2020 1 000 000 11 012 2732 R 1050

3.4. The Directors have passed the required resolutions, authorisations and approvals, to issue 70 000 “B”
Ordinary Shares, 70 000 “M” Ordinary Shares and/or 20 000 “UB” Ordinary Shares of no par value at
R1 050 per share in terms of the Offer. The Directors consider this issue price for the issue of the Shares
in terms of the Offer to be justified by the prospects of the Company, and therefore constitutes adequate
consideration in terms of section 40 of the Companies Act.

3.5. The Company has not issued any Shares at a premium in the preceding three years. (reg 72 (3))
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3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

3.9.

Interest earned on all investments made by Investors on or before 20 February 2020 will be paid to the
Investor within 10 (ten) Business Days from the Closing Date.

Applications must be for a minimum of 140 (one hundred and forty) Shares.

All application forms completed in accordance with the provisions of this Prospectus and the instructions
set out on the Mandate and Application form, should be delivered to:

Email address: Investors@grovest.co.za
Physical address: 164 Katherine Street, Building 2, Pinmill Office Park, Strathavon, 2196
Registered mail: 164 Katherine Street, Building 2, Pinmill Office Park, Strathavon, 2196

Proof of payment is to be received by Sunstone by no later than 17h00 on 28 February 2021 (crossed
“not transferable”) or banker’s draft or electronic transfer into the following bank account:

Account Name: Sunstone Capital Limited
Bank Name: FNB

Branch Name: Sandton

Branch Code: 019205

Account Number: 6280 1421 009

3.10. Applications will be irrevocable once received by Sunstone. No receipts will be issued for applications

4. MINI

and/or payments received.

MUM AND MAXIMUM SUBSCRIPTIONS IN TERMS OF THIS OFFER (reqg 73)

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

The Company does not intend to purchase any immovable property with the proceeds of the Offer.

The minimum amount to be raised in terms of this offer is R1 000 000. This includes the projected
issuing expenses exclusive of VAT.

Should the minimum amount of R1 000 000 not be raised in terms of the Offer, the Offer in terms of this
Prospectus will become null and void, all moneys received will be returned to Investors and no Shares
will be issued pursuant to this Offer.

Any amounts raised in excess of the projected issuing expenses, will be used to achieve the Company’s
goal to increase its capital base.

Should the Offer fail, an announcement to this effect will be made available on the Company’s website
within 7 (seven) Business Days of the Closing Date, with moneys returned to Investors within 10 (ten)
Business Days thereafter.

5. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.
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Shares are issued subject to the provisions of the application processes, the constitutional documents
of the Company and the terms of this Prospectus. As such, the Directors of the Company reserve the
right to accept or refuse any application(s), either in whole or in part, or to abate any or all application(s)
in such manner as they may, in their sole and absolute discretion, determine.

The Directors of the Company reserve the right to accept applications for less than 100 (one hundred)
Shares per application at their sole and absolute discretion.

If an application is refused by the Directors, the money that has been received by the Company will be
refunded to the applicant within 10 (ten) Business Days of the relevant Closing Date.



6. RESULTS OF ALLOCATIONS

Investors will be notified of the allocation of Shares within 7 (seven) Business Days of the Closing Date by
way of email.

6.1. Over Subscriptions
In the event of any Offer application being rejected or accepted for a lesser number of Shares than
applied for, any surplus application monies received will be refunded by Sunstone within 10 (ten)
Business Days of the Closing Date.

6.2. Issue of Shares

All Shares to be issued in terms of the Offer will be issued at the expense of Sunstone.
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SECTION 3 - STATEMENTS AND REPORTS RELATING TO THE OFFER

1. STATEMENT OF ADEQUACY OF CAPITAL (reqg 74)

The Directors are of the opinion that the issued share capital and working capital of the Company will be
adequate for the purpose of the business of the Company, for at least a period of 12 months after the date of
this Prospectus.

2. REPORTBY DIRECTORS AS TO MATERIAL CHANGES (reg 75)

There have been no material changes in the financial and trading position of the Company since the previous
financial reporting period and the date of this Prospectus.

3. STATEMENT AS TO LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGE (req 76)

No application has been made to any stock exchange for the listing of the Shares. The Company is currently
investigating the possibility of listing its securities on an approved over-the-counter exchange (OTC Platform)
and will update shareholders in the future regarding this.

4. REPORT BY THE AUDITOR WHERE BUSINESS UNDERTAKING TO BE ACQUIRED (req 77)

Potential transactions mentioned in the prospects section of this Prospectus do not fulfil the requirements of
Regulation 77 of the Companies Regulations, as they have not been finalised.

5. REPORT BY THE AUDITOR WHERE COMPANY WILL ACQUIRE A SUBSIDIARY (req 78)

A report from the auditor in terms of Regulation 78 of the Companies Regulations is not required for purposes
of this Prospectus.

6. REPORT BY THE AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY (req 79)

In terms of Regulation 79 of the Companies Act, the auditor is required to prepare a report on the profits and
losses, dividends and assets and liabilities of the Company. In this regard paragraph 3.3.11 and Annexure

7 of this Prospectus sets out the financial information and the auditor's report in respect of the financial
information required.
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SECTION 4 - ADDITIONAL MATERIAL INFORMATION

TAX DEDUCTIBILITY OF INVESTMENT IN SUNSTONE

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

In terms of Section 12J of the Income Tax Act, Investors will be entitled to deduct from their income
the full amount of their investment in Sunstone Capital Limited to R2 500 000 per Individual
taxpayer and R5 000 000 per Corporate taxpayer in the tax year of assessment whereby the
investment is made.

This tax relief mitigates investment risk and may enhance the potentialreturn.

The tax impact is best demonstrated as follows:

Investor type Individuals Trusts

Corporates

Gross investment R1 000 000 R1 000 000 R1 000 000

Tax relief (Maximum (R450 000) (R450 000) (R280 000)
marginal rate)

Net Investment R550 000 R550 000 R720 000

Effective % Tax 45% 45% 28%

* Dividends received by Corporates should not be subject to Dividends Tax, to the extent the local company-to-company dividend exemption requirements
set out in section 64F of the Income Tax Act are met.

** The above is based on an individual being taxed at the highest marginal income tax rate, in the tax year in which the investment is
made.

1.4. Sunstone intends to return realised investment surpluses to Shareholders by way of dividends.
Dividends paid will be subject to Dividend Withholding Tax as applicable.

1.5. Areturn of capital limited to the amount of the initial investment in Sunstone should not be subject
to income tax as a recoupment in the hands of an investor provided that the investment has been
held for no less than five years and Sunstone's approval by SARS as a Venture Capital Company
has not for any reason been withdrawn.

1.6. An amount equal to 125% of the expenditure incurred by investors in subscribing for shares in
Sunstone must be included in the income of Sunstone in the year of assessment, should its
approval as a Venture Capital Company be withdrawn.

1.7. Capital Gains as well as original capital returned to investors will be subject to Capital Gains Tax.

2. PROCEDURE TO CLAIM TAX DEDUCTION OF INVESTMENT

2.1. Investors will be entitled to deduct the full amount of their investment in Sunstone from their income
in the tax year ending 29 February 2021.

2.2. Sunstone shall send certificates to substantiate the claims for tax deductions to investors within
6 weeks of the Closing Date.

2.3. Investors can claim the tax relief by claiming the deduction in their 2020 provisional tax returns or in
their 2021 income tax returns.

3. LITIGATION STATEMENT

There are no legal or arbitration proceedings, including any proceedings that are pending or threatened,
of which the Company is aware that may have or have had in the last 12 months, a material effect on
the Company's financial position.

4. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

4.1. Sunstone subscribes to the guidelines of Corporate Governance set out in the King IV as set out in
Annexure 8 on page 49 of this Prospectus. (reg 54 (1) (b) (i)

4.2. The Manager’s performance is reviewed by the Board on an ongoing basis.
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5. EXPERTS’ CONSENTS

5.1. Each of the parties listed under Corporate Information and Advisors section have consented in writing
to act in the capacities stated and to their names appearing in this Prospectus and have not
withdrawn their consent prior to the publication of this Prospectus.

5.2. The independent reporting accountants have consented in writing to have their reports appear in
the Prospectus in the form and context as they appear and have not withdrawn their approval prior
to the publication of this Prospectus.

6. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors of the Company, whose names are given in paragraph 2.5 of Section 1 of this
Prospectus, collectively and individually, accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the
information provided in this Prospectus and certify that to the best of their knowledge and belief
there are no facts relating to the Company that have been omitted which would make any statement
relating to the Company false or misleading, that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts
have been made and that this Prospectus contains all information relating to the Company required
by law.

7. EINANCIAL ADVICE

7.1. This Prospectus constitutes objective information about Sunstone. Nothing contained in it should be
construed as constituting any form of investment advice or recommendation, guidance or proposal
of a financial nature in respect of any investment. Nothing in this Prospectus should be construed
as constituting the canvassing for, or marketing or advertising of financial services by Sunstone.

7.2. Investors should be cognisant that the value of, and potential income generated from, an acquisition
of shares in Sunstone may appreciate as well as depreciate. Investors may not realise the initial
share acquisition price. If in doubt, Investors should seek advice from their financial advisor,
attorney, accountant, banker or other professional advisor.

8. RISK FACTORS OF VENTURE CAPITAL INVESTMENTS

8.1. All the information in this Prospectus should be considered by potential investors before making a
decision to invest in Sunstone. Venture Capital Investments are considered to be speculative and
are considered to be more suitable for investors in a high-income bracket who are prepared to
accept the risks inherent in investments of this nature.

8.2. Prospective investors should carefully consider their financial position and make every effort to
familiarise themselves with the consequences of non-attainment by Sunstone of the objectives
outlined in this Prospectus. It may be prudent to seek independent financial advice regarding this
investment.

8.3. Prospective investors should be aware that the value of the ordinary shares in Sunstone will
fluctuate and that his investment may not realise a profit.

8.4. Changes in legislation relating to Venture Capital Companies may restrict or adversely affect the
ability of Sunstone to meet its objectives.

8.5. There can be no assurances that Sunstone will meet its objectives.

8.6. In order to comply with Venture Capital Company legislation, Sunstone must spend at least 80% of
its expenditure on equity shares in Qualifying Companies, which must be unlisted and have a book
value of assets of not more than R50 000 000 after Sunstone makes the investment in the Qualifying
Companies. Such companies may have a higher risk profile than larger, listed companies.

8.7. Qualifying Investments made by Sunstone will be in companies whose shares are not listed and will
therefore not be readily marketable. Whilst Sunstone may, in exceptional circumstances, buy back
Shares from Shareholders, it is not obliged to do so.

8.8. Venture Capital Shares are illiquid. incoming investors who purchase Venture Capital Shares from
existing investors will not qualify for the Section 12J Income Tax deduction.
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9. COMPLAINTS PROCESS & TCFOUTCOMES

9.1. Sunstone is committed to service excellence and values the relationship with its investors. The
Treat Your Customers Fairly (TCF) Culture is embedded in our business.

9.2. In terms of FAIS, Investors may lodge a complaint with Jeffrey Miller who is the Key Individual of
Sunstone at ki@grovest.co.za. We are committed to an effective and fair resolution of any
complaints. Sunstone’s complaints resolution procedure is available onrequest.

10. CONFIDENTIALITY

Sunstone will not use or disclose any confidential information obtained, except to the extent
permitted by our investors or required by applicable law. Policies and procedures in terms of the
Protection of Personal Information Act 4 of 2013 are in the process ofimplementation.

11. INVESTORS NOT RESIDENT IN SOUTH AFRICA

11.1. Investors not resident in South Africa should seek professional advice as to the consequences of
making an investment in a Venture Capital Company as they may be subject to tax in other
jurisdictions as well as in South Africa.

11.2. The following summary is intended as a guide and is, therefore, not comprehensive. If you are in
any doubt in this regard, please consult your professional advisor.

11.3. Emigrants from the Common Monetary Area

11.3.1. Aformer resident of the Common Monetary Area who has emigrated from South Africa may use
Blocked Rands to purchase Shares in terms of the Offer.

11.3.2. All payments in respect of subscriptions for Shares by emigrants using Blocked Rands must be
made through an authorised dealer in foreign exchange.

11.3.3. Share certificates will be restrictively endorsed as “NON-RESIDENT”.

11.3.4. If applicable, refund monies in respect of unsuccessful applications, emanating from Blocked
Rand accounts, will be returned to the authorised dealer administering such Blocked Rand
accounts for the credit of such applicant’s Blocked Rand account.

11.4. Applicants resident outside the Common Monetary Area

11.4.1. A person who is not resident in the Common Monetary Area should obtain advice as to whether
any government and/or legal consent is required and/or whether any other formality must be
observed to enable an application to be made in terms of the Offer.

11.4.2. This Prospectus is accordingly not an Offer in any area or jurisdiction in which it is illegal to
make such an Offer. In such circumstances this Prospectus is provided for information purposes
only. Share certificates will be restrictively endorsed as “NON-RESIDENT”.

12. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION (reg 53(a) (b) (d) (e))

12.1.Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection at the registered offices of
Sunstone at any time during business hours on weekdays until and including 10 (ten) Business
Days after the Closing Date:
= the MOI of Sunstone;

» material agreements disclosed in this Prospectus;

= the written consents of the Advisors and transfer secretaries named in this Prospectus to
act in those capacities;

= the Independent Reporting Accountant’s Report; and

= Sunstone’s FSCA license.
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13. PROFESSIONAL INDEMNITY AND FIDELITY INSURANCE COVER

As required in terms of FAIS, professional indemnity and fidelity insurance cover of R7 500 000 has
been procured by Sunstone.

14. SHARE BUY BACKS

14.1. An investment in Sunstone should be considered as a medium to long term investment. In the
event of a shareholder requiring to terminate his investment prematurely, the Board will endeavour
to place the shares with an alternate investor on his behalf.

14.2.In exceptional circumstances, and at the discretion of the Board, Sunstone may repurchase such
shares at an appropriately discounted value.

14.3. Shareholders who do not hold Venture Capital Shares for a minimum period of five years, will be

subject to a recoupment of tax on their initial investment, in the year in which the Venture Capital
Shares are sold.
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SECTION 5 - INAPPLICABLE SECTIONS
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ANNEXURE 1 - Risk Factors

This annexure describes the risk factors which are considered by the Directors to be material in relation to Sunstone:

RISK

EXPLANATION OF IMPACT OF
RISK ON
PERFORMANCE/REPUTATION

LEVEL

MITIGATING FACTOR

Economic conditions

Uncertainty

Changes in legislation

Illiquid shares

Fraud risk / internal
control risk

Credit risk
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the state of the economy will
change over time in line with the
economic and business cycles

having limited knowledge of
current conditions or future
outcomes

legislative risk includes
changes to section 12J of the
Income Tax Act

the issued ordinary shares to
investors are illiquid

the company does not have an
internal audit function

credit risk consists mainly of
cash deposits, cash equivalents
and trade debtors.

medium

low

medium

high

medium

low

vehicle sales have been increasing
slightly in southern africa with this
industry showing resilience to
economic down-turn.

the Sunstone Investment
Committee will only consider
investments of which it has a good
understanding and can add value
and influence to the underlying
investments.

The Section 12J VCC regime is
subject to a sunset clause
terminating on 30 June 2021. It is
reasonable to assume that National
Treasury and SARS will review the
efficiency of the regime and a
decision will be then made as to
whether it should be extended.

full disclosure is made to investors
that shares subscribed for are
illiquid.

at the discretion of the Board, the
Company may repurchase investor
shares at an appropriately
discounted value. Furthermore, the
Board is considering high probability
exit strategies.

management accounts are produced
monthly and reviewed by the Board.

it is not deemed necessary by the
audit and risk committee to
implement an internal audit function
due to the size of the Company.

external auditors annually provide a
management report on internal
controls to the audit and risk
committee.

the company only deposits cash
with major banks with high quality
credit standing and limits exposure
to any one counter-party.



Interest rate risk

Operational risks

Liquidity risk

Capital risk
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financial assets and liabilities that
are sensitive to interest rate
comprise

cash balances and gearing if any.

the operational risk is that
investment decisions are not
properly evaluated and
considered

post investment management not
conducted with adequate
diligence and care

the risk that funds will not be
available to meet future
investment requirements

to safeguard the company’s

ability to continue as a going

concern to provide returns for

shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital

structure to reduce the cost of

capital.

low

low

low

medium

medium

funds not yet invested are deposited

in short, medium and long-term
interest-bearing accounts.

a 1% increase or decrease represents

management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in
interest rates.

the mandate of the Sunstone
Investment Committee is to ensure
that investment decisions are
properly considered and evaluated
prior to investments being made.

the manager will procure the
appointment of at least 1 non-
executive director to the board of

investee companies as a condition of

investment.

the company manages liquidity risk
through ongoing review of future
funding obligations.

in order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the company may
issue new shares or sell assets to
increase cash and cash
equivalents.



ANNEXURE 2 - APPOINTMENT, QUALIFICATION, REMUNERATION AND BORROWING POWERS OF DIRECTORS
(MOl EXTRACT)

The material provisions of the MOI of the Company are as follows:

COMPOSITION AND POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

32.1

32.2

32.3

324

32.5

32.6

The board shall consist of not less than three directors. The shareholders shall be entitled, by ordinary resolution, to determine
such maximum number of directors as they from time to time shall consider appropriate.

A director shall not be required to hold any qualifying shares.
No director shall be elected for life or for an indefinite period.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this MOI, the manager will only be entitled to nominate directors for election.

All directors shall be elected by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders at a general or annual general meeting from the
nominees of the manager in terms of clause 32.4 .

In any election of directors -

32.6.1 the election is to be conducted as a series of votes, each of which is on the candidacy of a single individual to fill a single

vacancy, with the series of votes continuing until all vacancies on the board at that time have been filled; and

32.6.2 in each vote to fill a vacancy -

each voting right entitled to be exercised may be exercised once; and

the vacancy is filled only if a majority of the voting rights exercised support the candidate.

32.7

32.8

32.9

32.10

32.11

32.12

32.13

The board may appoint a person who satisfies the requirements for election as a director to fill any vacancy and serve as a
director on a temporary basis until the vacancy has been filled by election in terms of clause 32.6 at the next annual general
meeting, and during that period any person so appointed has all of the powers, functions and duties, and is subject to all of the
liabilities, of any other director.

The company shall only have elected directors and there shall be no appointed or ex officio directors as contemplated in
section 66(4).

Apart from satisfying the qualification and eligibility requirements set out in section 69, a person need not satisfy any eligibility
requirements or qualifications to become or remain a director or a prescribed officer of the company.

All acts performed by the directors or by a committee of directors or by any person acting as a director or a member of a
committee shall, notwithstanding that it shall afterwards be discovered that there was some defect in the election of the directors
or persons acting as aforesaid, or that any of them were disqualified from or had vacated office, be as valid as if every such
person had been duly elected and was qualified and had continued to be a director or member of such committee.

Save as otherwise expressly provided by the MOI, all cheques, promissory notes, bills of exchange and other negotiable or
transferable instruments and all documents to be executed by the company, shall be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed or
executed as the case may be in such manner as the directors shall from time to time determine.

The directors shall have the authority to make, amend or repeal any rules relating to the governance of the company as
contemplated in section 15(3).

Without prejudice to any contrary provisions in this MOI, a director shall vacate his office in the circumstances envisaged in
section 70(1) of the Act or if —

32.13.1 his estate is sequestrated, or he surrenders his estate or enters into a general compromise with his creditors; or

32.13.2 heis found to be or becomes of unsound mind; or

32.13.3 a majority of his co-director’s sign and deposit at the office a written notice wherein he is requested to vacate his office,

which shall become operative on deposit at the office (but without prejudice to any claim for damages); or
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32.13.4 he is removed by a resolution of the company of which proper notice has been given in terms of the Act (but without
prejudice to any claim for damages); or

32.13.5 he is, pursuant to the provisions of the Act or any order made thereunder, prohibited from acting as a director; or
32.13.6 he gives one months (or with the consent of the board, a lesser period) notice in writing of his intention to resign; or
32.13.7 he dies or resigns his office by notice in writing to the company; or

32.13.8 he is absent from meetings of the directors for six consecutive months without leave of the directors while not engaged
in the business of the company and -

he is not represented at any such meetings during such six consecutive months by an alternate director; and
the directors resolve that his office be, by reason of such absence, vacated,
provided that the directors shall have power to grant to any director leave of absence for a definite or indefinite period.
32.14 Adirector may hold any other office or place of profit under the company (except that of auditor) or any subsidiary of the company
in conjunction with his office of director, for such period and on such terms as to remuneration (in addition to the remuneration
to which he may be entitled as a director) and otherwise as a disinterested quorum of the directors or a remuneration committee

appointed by the board may determine.

32.15 A director of the company may be or become a director or other officer of, or otherwise interested in, any company promoted by
the company or in which the company may be interested as shareholder or otherwise.

32.16 Any director may act personally or through his firm in a professional capacity for the company (otherwise than as auditor) and
he or his firm shall be entitled to remuneration for professional services rendered as if he were not a director.

32.17 A director who is in any way, whether directly or indirectly, interested in a contract or arrangement or proposed contract or
arrangement with the company or any person in which the company has an interest, shall declare the nature of his interest in
accordance with the Act.

32.18 No director shall be disqualified by his office from contracting with the company with regard to —

32.18.1 his tenure of any other office or place of profit under the company or in any company promoted by the company or in
which the company is interested;

32.18.2 professional services rendered or to be rendered by such director;
32.18.3 any sale or other transaction.

No such contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the company in which any director is in any way interested is
voidable solely by reason of such interest.

32.19 No director so contracting or being so interested shall be liable to account to the company for any profit realised by any such
appointment, contract or arrangement by reason of his office as director or of the fiduciary relationship created thereby.

32.20 A director may not vote nor be counted in the quorum (and if he shall do so his vote shall not be counted) on any resolution for
his own appointment to any other office or place of profit under the company or in respect of any contract or arrangement in

which he is interested, provided that this prohibition shall not apply to —

32.20.1 any arrangement for giving to any director any security or indemnity in respect of money lent by him to or obligations
undertaken by him for the benefit of the company; or

32.20.2 any arrangement for the giving by the company of any security to a third party in respect of a debt or obligation of the
company which the director has himself guaranteed or secured; or

32.20.3 any contract by a director to subscribe for or underwrite shares or debentures of the company; or
32.20.4 any contract or arrangement with a public company in which he is interested by reason only of being a director, officer,

creditor or shareholder of such legal person,
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and these provisos may at any time be suspended or relaxed either generally, or in respect of any particular contract or
arrangement, by the company in general meeting.

32.21 A contract which violates the terms of clause 32.20 can be ratified by the company in general meeting.

32.22 The terms of clause 32.20 shall not prevent a director from voting as a shareholder at a general meeting at which a resolution
in which he has a personal interest is tabled.

32.23 The directors may exercise the voting powers conferred by the shares held or owned by the company in any other company in
such manner in all respects as they think fit, including the exercise thereof in favour of any resolution appointing themselves or
any of them to be directors or officers of such other company or for determining any payment of or remuneration to the directors
or officers of such other company.

32.24 A director may vote in favour of a resolution referred to in clause 32.23 for the exercise of the voting rights in the manner
described in clause 32.23 notwithstanding that he may be, or is about to become, a director or other officer of such other
company and for that or any other reason may be interested in the exercise of such voting rights in the manner aforesaid.

RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS

32.25 All the directors shall retire at the first annual general meeting and at every annual general meeting thereafter one third of the
non-executive directors, or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third, shall
retire from office.

32.26 The non-executive directors to retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in office since their last election, but
as between persons who were elected as non-executive director on the same day, those to retire shall, unless they otherwise

agree among themselves, be determined by lot.

32.27 The length of time a director has been in office shall be computed from his last election or the date upon which he was deemed
re-elected.

32.28 A director retiring at a meeting shall retain office until the election of directors at that meeting has been completed.
32.29 Retiring directors may be re-elected.

32.30 No person, other than a director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the directors, be eligible for election to
the office of a director at any general meeting, unless —

32.30.1 not more than twenty-one, but at least seven clear days before the day appointed for the meeting, there shall have been
delivered at the office of the company a notice in writing by a shareholder (who may also be the proposed director) duly
qualified to be present and to vote at the meeting for which such notice is given;

32.30.2 such notice sets out the shareholder's intention to propose a specific person for election as director; and

32.30.3 notice in writing by the proposed person of his/her willingness to be elected is attached thereto (except where the
proposer is the same person as the proposed).

32.31 The company may at the meeting at which a director retires, fill the vacated office by electing a person thereto and in default the
retiring director, if willing to continue to act, shall be deemed to have been re-elected, unless —

32.31.1 itis expressly resolved at such meeting not to fill such vacated office; or
32.31.2 aresolution for the re-election of such director was put to the meeting and rejected.
32.32 The company in general meeting or the directors may appoint any person as director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional director, but the total number of directors shall not at any time exceed the maximum number fixed by or in accordance

with this MOI.

32.33 Should the company in general meeting increase or reduce the number of directors, it may also determine in what rotation such
increased or reduced number is to retire.
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PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES

32.34

32.35

32.36

Save as may be provided otherwise in this MOI, the directors may meet for the despatch of business, adjourn, and otherwise
regulate their meetings as they think fit.

Until otherwise determined by the directors, two directors shall constitute a quorum.

A director authorised by the board of directors of the company-

32.36.1 may call a meeting of the directors at any time; and

32.36.2 must call such a meeting if required to do so by at least -

32.37

32.38

32.39

32.40

32.41

32.42

32.43

32.44

32.45

32.46

25% of the directors, in the case of a board that has at least twelve members; or

two directors, in any other case.
The directors shall determine the number of days' notice to be given for directors' meetings, and the form of that notice.
A meeting of the directors may be conducted by electronic communication and/or one or more directors may participate in a
meeting by electronic communication, so long as the electronic communication facility employed ordinarily enables all persons
participating in that meeting to communicate concurrently with each other without an intermediary, and to participate effectively
in the meeting.
The remaining directors must as soon as possible, and in any event, not later than three months from the date that the number
of directors became less than the permissible minimum, fill the vacancies or call a general meeting for the purpose of filling the
vacancies. Failure by the company to have the minimum number of directors during the aforesaid three-month period does not
limit or negate the authority of the board or the company. The directors in office may act notwithstanding any vacancy in their
body, but after the expiry of the aforementioned three-month period, if and for so long as their number is below the minimum
number fixed in accordance with the MOI, they may act only for the purpose of filling up vacancies in their body or of summoning
general meetings of the company, but not for any other purpose.
The directors may —

32.40.1 elect a chairperson and a deputy chairperson (to act in the absence of the chairperson) of their meetings;

32.40.2 determine the period for which they are to hold office, which period shall not exceed five years.
The chairperson, or in his absence the deputy chairperson, shall be entitled to preside over all meetings of directors. Should no
chairperson or deputy chairperson be elected, or if at any meeting the chairperson or deputy chairperson is not present within
five minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the directors present shall choose one of their number to be

chairperson at such meeting.

All issues arising at any meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes and each director shall have one vote on any issue to
be decided at any meeting.

The chairperson shall not have a second or casting vote.

A meeting of the directors at which a quorum is present shall be entitled to exercise all or any of the powers, authorities and
discretions conferred by or in terms of the MOI or which are vested in or are exercisable by the directors generally.

A resolution in writing signed, given in person, or by electronic communication by a majority of directors which resolution is then
inserted into the minute book and provided that each director has received notice of the matter to be decided, shall be as valid
and effectual as a resolution passed at a meeting of the directors duly called and constituted.
Any resolutions contemplated in clause 32.45 —

32.46.1 may consist of one or more documents so signed,;

32.46.2 shall have regard to the provisions of section 75 of the Act;

32.46.3 shall be delivered to the secretary without delay, and shall be recorded by him in the company's minute book.
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Such resolution shall be deemed to have been passed on the day it was signed by the last director or alternate director who
is entitled to sign it, unless a statement to the contrary is made in that resolution.

32.47 The meetings and proceedings of any committee consisting of two or more directors shall be governed by the provisions hereof
in regard to meetings and proceedings of the directors so far as the same are applicable thereto.

32.48 Resolutions adopted by the board —
32.48.1 must be dated and sequentially numbered; and
32.48.2 are effective as of the date of the resolution, unless any resolution states otherwise.

32.49 Any minutes of a meeting, or a resolution, signed by the chairperson of the meeting, or by the chairperson of the next meeting
of the board, is evidence of the proceedings of that meeting, or the adoption of that resolution, as the case may be.

32.50 Minutes of all board meetings, resolutions and directors' declarations shall be kept in accordance with the provisions of
section 24.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
32.51 The company may pay remuneration to the directors for their services as directors in accordance with a special resolution
approved by the shareholders within the previous two years, as set out in sections 66(8) and 66(9), and the power of the
company in this regard is not limited or restricted by this MOI.
32.52 Any director who —
32.52.1 serves on any executive or other committee; or
32.52.2 devotes special attention to the business of the company; or
32.52.3 goes or resides outside the RSA for the purpose of the company; or
32.52.4 otherwise performs or binds himself to perform services which, in the opinion of the directors, are outside the
scope of the ordinary duties of a director,
may be paid such extra remuneration or allowance in addition to or in substitution of the remuneration to which he may be
entitled as a director, as a disinterested quorum of the directors or a remuneration committee appointed by the board may
from time to time determine.
32.53 A director may be employed in any other capacity in the company or as a director or employee of a company controlled by, or
itself a major subsidiary of, the company and, in such event, his appointment and remuneration in respect of such other office

must be determined by a disinterested quorum of directors.

32.54 The directors shall also be paid all their travelling and other expenses properly and necessarily incurred by them in connection
with —

32.54.1 the business of the company; and

32.54.2 attending meetings of the directors or of committees of the directors or of the company.

37 BORROWING POWERS
37.1 Subject to all other provisions of this MOI, the directors may from time to time —
37.11 borrow for the purpose of the company such sums as they think fit;

37.1.2 secure the payment or repayment of any such sums or any other sum, as they think fit, whether by the creation
and issue of debentures, mortgage or charge upon all or any of the property or assets of the company;

37.1.3 make such regulations regarding the transfer of debentures, the issue of certificates therefor and all such other
matters incidental to debentures as the directors think fit.

37.2 The borrowing powers of the company as contemplated in clause 37.1 are not limited.
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ANNEXURE 3 — DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

Name of Director

Commencement
Date

Termination Date

Period

Notice Period

Remuneration

Amaresh Chetty

26/02/2018

26/02/2023

Five consecutive
one year terms of
office

1 calendar month

R5 000

Avrahami Gordon

01/12/2020

30/11/2025

Five
consecutive one
year terms

of office

1 calendar month

Nil

Stanley Medalie

12/02/2018

12/02/2023

Five
consecutive one
year terms

of office

1 calendar month

Nil

Jeffrey Wayne
Miller

12/02/2018

12/02/2023

Five
consecutive one
year terms

of office

1 calendar month

Nil
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ANNEXURE 4 — SALIENT POINTS OF THE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT (EXTRACT)

Term : 10-Years and to continue in perpetuity thereafter
Notice Period : 3 Months’ notice from either Party
Services

o effectively manage and supervise the day to day operations of the Business including, but without limitation:
e raising of funds for the operations of the Company and if necessary engaging intermediaries for that purpose;
e promoting and marketing the Company;

¢ initiating and sourcing of potential investments for the Company;

¢ managing due diligence investigations in relation to potential investments and making recommendations arising
therefrom to the Board;

¢ monitoring and managing the Company’s investments and to the extent necessary representing the Company
at shareholders and directors’ meetings of companies in which the Company has invested;

e investigating and managing the disposal and realisation of the Company’s investments and making
recommendations in that regard to the Board;

e conducting on behalf of the Company all negotiations in relation to the acquisition or disposal of any investment;

e preparation at regular intervals of reports and communications to the Board and Shareholders of the Company
in relation to the management, administration, conduct and control of the Company;

e preparation, on request by the Board, of material required for inclusion in the annual and other reports of the
Company or the Board;

e prepare and maintain agendas, minutes, adequate accounting records and other reports in respect of the
Business;

e open and operate banking accounts for the purposes of the Company;
e report to the Board at such times as may be reasonably necessary with regard to all aspects of the Company;

e institute or defend any legal proceedings arising out of the ordinary and regular course of conduct of the
Company, which costs will be for the account of the Company.

Remuneration:
Ordinary Shares

e The Manager is entitled to payment of a capital raising fee of 3% (three percent) (excluding VAT) on capital
raised.

“B” Ordinary Shares and “UB” Ordinary Shares

e The Manager is entitled to a capital raising fee of 1.5% (one-point five percent) (excluding VAT) on total capital
raised in the “B” Ordinary Shares and/or “UB” Ordinary Shares;

e The Manager may charge the underlying Qualifying Company a 2% (two percent) management fee per annum
on share capital, payable quarterly in advance on 1 March, 1 June, 1 September and 1 December of each
year.

e The Manager may charge investors a performance fee of 20% (twenty percent) of the total amount due to “B”
Ordinary and “UB” Ordinary Shareholders upon return of risk capital to the Investor.
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ANNEXURE 5 - FSP LICENSE
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WITIWE2NTP
20,08/ 2314

FINANCIAL SECTOR CONDUCT AUTHORITY

LICENCE No. 48370

It s hereby certified that vrith effsct from 6 Fabruary 2618

SUNSTONE CAPITAL LTD

is licensed ag a financial services provider
in terms of section 8 of the Financial Advisory and Intermediary Services
Act, 2002 {Act No. 37 of 2002) ,
subject to the conditions and restrictions sat out in the Annexure

i3 SEP 2018

Loton congt




ANNEXURE 6 — REGULATION 79 & INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

PKF OCTAGON

The Board of Directors
Sunstene Capital Limited
PO Box 1277

Gallo Manor

2052

02 December 2020

Dear Sirs

AUDITORS REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF SUNSTONE CAPITAL
LIMITED (“SUNSTONE” OR “THE COMPANY™) IN TERMS OF REGULATION 79 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT

We have agreed to provide a report on SUNSTONE's financial information included In the
pro-forma statement of comprehensive Income and statement of financial position of the
SUNSTONE prospectus to be Issued on or about 10 December 2020 (“the Prospectus”) for
purposes of complying with Regulation 79 of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 (“the Act"). In
terms of Regulation 79 of the Act, a company issuing a prospectus is required to provide
financial information comprising of the following:

» the consolidated and separate profits and losses of the company for the three finandal
years preceding the date of the prospectus; and

» the consolidated and separate assets and llabllities of the company as at the last date to
which the annual financial statements were made out; and

» the dividends paid by the company In respect of each class of securities for the three
financial years preceding the date of the prospectus, including particulars of each class
of share on which dividends were paid and cases where no dividends were pald In respect
of a particular class of shares,

(collectively “the Regulation 79 financial Information™),
PKF OCTAGON is the appointed auditor of SUNSTONE,

We have audited the annual financial statements of SUNSTONE for the period ended 23
February 2020. Our audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and the financial statements prepared In accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, We have not performed any audit procedures subsequent to our audit
opinion dated 22 October 2020, in respect of the period ended 29 February 2020,
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We confirm that the Regulation 79 financial information detailed In the pro-forma
statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position has been extracted
from SUNSTONE's annual financial statements for the period ended 29 February 2020. As
the Regulation 79 financial information is an extract from the annual financial statements
PKF OCTAGON Johannesburg can report the foliowing:

« the financial information is free from material misstatement and has been prepared on
a basis consistent with the Act;

= the trade debtors and creditors include no material amount that is not a trade account;

» the provision for doubtful debts appears to be adequate; and

+ allinter company profits have been eliminated.

Material changes in the assets and liobilities

In accordance with Regulation 75 (4)(b)(v), PXF OCTAGON lohannesburg Is required to
include a statement in its report, as to whether there have been any material changes to the
assets and liabilities of SUNSTONE since the date of the last annual financial statements.

Our engagement to ascertain whether there have been any material changes to the assets
&nd liabilities of SUNSTONE since the date of the last annual financial statements was
undertaken in accordance with the Internationzl Standards on Related Services applicable to
agreed-upon procedures engagements. The procedures were performed solely to assist you
in complying with regulation 79 (8){b)(v) of the Act. The following precedures were
performed:

» reviewed the latest available management accounts of SUNSTONE;

o reviewed minutes of the board of directors of SUNSTONE since the financial year end; and

* obtained a letter of representation from SUNSTONE management conflrming that all
significant changes to the financial position of the Company since the financial year end
have been disclosed to ourselves.

Based on the aforementioned procedures there have not been material changes in the
assets and issued share capital of the Company since the date of the last annual financial
statements relating to issue of ordinary shares by way of a private placement as detalled in
the prospectus.

Nothing has come to our attention that would indicate that there has been a material
change In the assets and llabilities of SUNSTONE since its last financial year end.

Because the above procedures do not constitute either an audit or a review made in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing or International Standards on Review
Engagements, we do not express any assurance on the procedures.

Had we performed additional procedures or had we performed an audit or review of the
financial statements in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing or International
Standards on Review Engagements, other matters might have come to our attention that
would have been reported to you.

Our report Is solely for the purpose of complying with Regulation 79(4) and for your
Information, This report relates only to the items specified above, and does not extend to
any financial statements of SUNSTONE.

We hereby consent to the inclusion of this letter In its entirety in the prospectus.

Yours faithfully

PiE Sj.aﬂk I«(\&..

PXF Octagon Inc



ANNEXURE 7 — KING CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The directors have established mechanisms and policies appropriate to the Company's business in keeping with its
commitment to the best practices in Corporate Governance in order to ensure guidance from the King Code V. These
are reviewed by the directors from time to time.

The formal steps taken by the directors are summarised as follows:
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD SUB-COMMITTEES
Board of directors

The Board consists of a minimum of 3 non-executive directors. The non-executive Directors bring to the
Company a wide range of skills and experience that will enable them to contribute independent views and to
exercise objective judgements in matters requiring the Directors' decisions. The Chairman is an independent
non-executive director.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at least once every three
years in accordance with the MOI.

Board meetings will be held at least quarterly, with additional meetings convened when circumstances
necessitate it. The Board sets the strategic objectives of the Company and determines investment and
performance criteria as well as being responsible for the proper management, control compliance and ethical
behaviour of the businesses under its direction. The Board has established a number of committees to give
detailed attention to certain of its responsibilities and which operate within defined, written terms of reference.

Audit and Risk Committee

The Board has established an audit and risk committee whose primary objectives are to provide the Board
with additional assurance regarding the efficacy and reliability of the financial information used by the Directors,
to assist them in the discharge of their duties. The committee is required to provide comfort to the Board that
adequate and appropriate financial and operating controls are in place, that significant business, financial and
other risks have been identified and are being suitably managed and that satisfactory standards of
governance, reporting and compliance are in operation.

Within this context, the Board is responsible for the Company's systems of internal financial and operational
control. The Directors are charged with the responsibility of determining the adequacy, extent and operation
of these systems. Comprehensive reviews and testing of the effectiveness of the internal control systems in
operation are performed by external practitioners, who report to the Audit and Risk Committee.

The Audit and Risk Committee meets at least two times a year and comprises a majority of non-executive
Directors, one of whom acts as Chairman. Executives and managers responsible for finance, the heads of
internal audit, if applicable, and the external auditors, are in attendance.

Remuneration Committee

The Board performs the functions of a remuneration committee in that it monitors the remuneration policies
of Sunstone and reviews and approves the remuneration set for directors.



50| Page

The Company's remuneration policies are reviewed annually.
Investment Committee

The Board has appointed the Sunstone Investment Committee. The Sunstone Investment Committee
consists of a minimum of two non- executive Directors, one independent non-executive Director and an
independent consultant. The Sunstone Investment Committee meets quarterly and when necessary to
review Sunstone’s investment portfolio as well as to consider investment opportunities and possible sales of
investments. The committee's authority level is determined by the Board. The independent consultant has
voting power at the Sunstone Investment Committee.

DIRECTORS’ DEALINGS AND PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

The Company has a policy which prohibits dealings by directors and certain other managers in certain
circumstances as determined by the Board.

The Board may in furtherance of their duties and when necessary, take independent professional advice, at
the Company's expense. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of risk management is to identify, assess, manage and monitor the risks to which the business
is exposed. It is the Board's responsibility to:

. review legal matters that could have a significant impact on the company's business;

. review the company's directors' reports detailing the adequacy and overall effectiveness of the
company's risk management function and its implementation by management, and reports on internal
control and any recommendations, and confirm that appropriate action has been taken;

. review the risk philosophy, strategy and policies recommended by the Board. The committee will ensure
compliance with such policies;

. review the adequacy of insurance coverage; and

. review risk identification and measurement methodologies.

Each risk is viewed from three distinct perspectives:

. opportunity (as there is an inherent relationship between risk and reward);
. uncertainty (to ensure proactive action); and
. hazard (Potential negative events including financial loss such as theft, injury, death or a lawsuit).

COMMUNICATION

The company is committed to communicating regularly and effectively with all stakeholders in an accurate and
transparent manner.

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS

Mutual respect between the Company and its stakeholders is encouraged and the interests of stakeholders
are taken into account in all decisions made by the company. All shareholders are treated equally.

ETHICS

The Company is committed to being a responsible corporate citizen promoting the highest standards of
ethical behaviour.



Instances of non-compliance with King IV are listed below

LEADERSHIP, ETHICS AND CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP
Organisational ethics
Principle 2: The governing body should govern the ethics of the organisation in a way that supports the establishment of an ethical culture.

7.

10.

Respol

The governing body should ensure that the codes of conduct and ethics policies
provide for arrangements that familiarise employees and other stakeholders with the
organisation's ethical standards. These arrangements should include -

a. publishing the organisation's codes of conduct and policies on the
organisation's website, or on other platforms or through other media as is
appropriate;

© including the codes of conduct and ethics policies in employee induction and

training programmes.

The governing body should exercise ongoing oversight of the management of ethics
and oversee that it results in the following:

(o The use of protected disclosure or whistle-blowing mechanisms to detect

breaches of ethical standards and dealing with such disclosures appropriately.

d. The monitoring of adherence to the organisation's ethical standards by
employees and other stakeholders through, among others, periodic
independent assessments.

The following should be disclosed in relation to organisational ethics:
a. An overview of the arrangements for governing and managing ethics.

b. Key areas of focus during the reporting period.

c. Measures taken to monitor organisational ethics and how the outcomes were

addressed.

d. Planned areas of future focus.

nsible corporate citizenship
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Principle 3: The governing body should ensure that the organisation is and is seen to be a responsible corporation citizen

14.

15.
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The governing body should oversee and monitor, on an ongoing basis, how the consequences of
the organisation's activities and outputs affect its status as a responsible corporate citizen. This
oversight and monitoring should be performed against measures and targets agreed with

management in all of the following areas:

a. Workplace (including employment equity; fair remuneration; and the safety, health, dignity

and development of employees).

b Economy (including economic transformation prevention, detection and response to fraud

and corruption, and responsible and transparent tax policy).

The following should be disclosed in relation to corporate citizenship:

a. An overview of the arrangements for governing and managing responsible corporate

citizenship.

b. Key areas of focus during the reporting period.
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C. Measures taken to monitor corporate citizenship and how the outcomes were addressed.



compliant the
Non- Company’s
d. Planned areas of future focus. compliant operations
Reporting Compliant Remarks

Principle 5: The governing body should ensure that reports issued by the organisation enable stakeholders to make informal
assessments of the organisation’s performance, and its short, medium and long-term prospects.

Governance
processes in
The governing body should oversee that reports such as the annual financial statements, zlacreoa?i:tr:
11 sustainability reports, social and ethics committee reports, or other online or printed information or Partially t[c))pthepsize
" reports are issued, as is necessary, to comply with legal requirements, and/or to meet the Compliant
legitimate and reasonable information needs of material stakeholders. and scope of
9 the
Company’s
operations
Governance
The governing body should oversee that the organisation issues an integrated report at least Processes in
annually, which is either: place RS
Partially appropriate
a. a standalone report which connects the more detailed information in other reports and Compliant 5 s sl
) : - S and scope of
addresses, at a high level and in a complete, concise way, the matters that could significantly the
affect the organisation's ability to create value; or Company’s
12 operations
' Governance
processes in
place as are
b. a distinguishable, prominent and accessible part of another report which also includes the Partiall appropriate
annual financial statements and other reports that must be issued in compliance with legal Complia);lt to the size
provisions. and scope of
the
Company’s
operations
The governing body should oversee that the following information is published on the Governance
organisation's website, or on other platforms or through other media as is appropriate for access by processes in
stakeholders: Non- place as are
a. Corporate governance disclosures required in terms of this Code (refer to Part 3: King IV el appropriate
Application and Disclosure for more detail). to the size
and scope of
Non- the
15, b. Integrated reports. compliant ~ Company’s
operations
Audited
Annual
Partially Financial
c. Annual financial statements and other external reports. Compliant Statements
are sent to
shareholders
annually.
Primary role and responsibilities of the governing body Compliant Remarks
Principle 6: The Governing Body should serve as the focal point and custodian of corporate governance in the organisation.
Attendance
Registers
The following should be disclosed in relation to the primary role and responsibilities of the partiall maintained
governing body: Com Iia);lt for all
p relevant
meetings
a. The number of meetings held during the reporting period, and attendance at those meetings
5 Governance
processes in
place as are
b. Whether the governing body is satisfied that it has fulfilled its responsibilities in accordance Partially a;pptl;loprllate
with its charter for the reporting period. Compliant 0 the size
and scope of
the
Company’s
operations
Composition of the governing body Compliant Remarks

Principle 7: The governing body should comprise the appropriate balance of knowledge, skills, experience, diversity and
independence for it to discharge its governance role and responsibilities objectively and effectively.

Composition

When determining the requisite number of members of the governing body, the

following factors should be considered:
Governance
processes in
place as are
appropriate
to the size
and scope of

the

Company’s

Partially
Compliant

b. The appropriate mix of executive, non-executive and independent non-executive members
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11.

12.

f.  Diversity targets relating to the composition of the governing body.

The governing body should comprise a majority of non-executive members, most of
whom should be independent.

As a minimum, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and at least one other executive
should be appointed to the governing body to ensure that it has more than one point of
direct interaction with management. The executive other than the CEO appointed to
the governing body may be the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) or another designated
executive as is appropriate for the organisation.

The governing body should set targets for race and gender representation in its
membership.

The governing body should establish arrangements for periodic, staggered rotation of
its members so as to invigorate its capabilities by introducing members with new
expertise and perspectives while retaining valuable knowledge, skills and experience
and maintaining continuity.

Nomination, election and appointment of members to the governing body

20.

A brief professional profile of each candidate standing for election at the annual
general meeting (AGM), including details of existing professional commitments, should
accompany the notice of the AGM, together with a statement from the governing body
confirming whether it supports the candidate's election or re-election.

Independence and conflicts

28.

30.

The governing body should consider the following and other indicators holistically, and
on a substance-over-form basis, when assessing the independence of a member of
the governing body for purposes of categorisation. The member of the governing body:

d. has been in the employ of the organisation as an executive manager during the
preceding three financial years, or is a related party to such executive manager;

The following should be disclosed with regards to the composition of the governing
body:

b.  The targets set for gender and race representation in the membership of the governing

body, and progress made against these targets.

i. The reasons why any members of the governing body have been removed, resigned or

retired.

Chair of the governing body

31
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The governing body should elect an independent non-executive member as chair to
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lead the governing body in the objective and effective discharge of its governance role
and responsibilities.

The governing body should appoint an independent non-executive member as the
lead independent to fulfil the following functions:
a. To lead in the absence of the chair.
b. To serve as a sounding board for the chair.
c. To act as an intermediary between the chair and other members of the governing body,
if necessary.

d. To deal with shareholders' concerns where contact through the normal channels has

32. failed to resolve concerns, or where such contact is inappropriate.

e. To strengthen independence on the governing body if the chair is not an independent
non-executive member of the governing body.

f.  To chair discussions and decision-making by the governing body on matters where the
chair has a conflict of interest.

g. To lead the performance appraisal of the chair.
The CEO of the organisation should not also chair the governing body, and the retired
34. CEO should not become the chair of the governing body until three complete years

have passed after the end of the CEO's tenure.

When determining which of its committees the chair of the governing body should

serve on, either as member or chair, the governing body should consider how this

affects the overall concentration and balance of power on the governing body.

Generally, the following should apply:

b.  The chair may be a member of the committee responsible for remuneration but

should not be its chair.

36.
d. The chair may be a member of the committee responsible for risk governance and
may also be its chair.
e. The chair may be a member of the social and ethics committee but should not be its
chair.
The following should be disclosed in relation to the chair:
b. Whether or not an independent non-executive member of the governing body
38. has been appointed as the lead independent, and the role and responsibilities assigned

to the position.

Committees of the governing body
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Principle 8: The governing body should ensure that its arrangements for delegation within its own structures promote

independent judgement and assist with balance of power and the effective discharge of its duties.
General
The terms of reference should, at a minimum, deal with the following:

43. h. The arrangements for evaluating the committee's performance.
Members of the executive and senior management should be invited to attend committee meetings
a7 either by standing invitation or on an ad hoc-basis to provide pertinent information and insights in
" their areas of responsibility.
The following should be disclosed in relation to each committee of the governing body:
a. Its overall role and associated responsibilities and functions.
b. Its composition, including each member's qualifications and experience.
c. Any external advisers or invitees who regularly attend committee meetings.
50. d. Key areas of focus during the reporting period.
e. The number of meetings held during the reporting period and attendance at those meetings.

—h

Whether the committee is satisfied that it has fulfilled its responsibilities in accordance with its
terms of reference for the reporting period.

Audit committee
56.  All members of the audit committee should be independent, non-executive members of the
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59.

governing body.

In addition to required statutory disclosure and the disclosures recommended in paragraph 50, the
following should also be disclosed in relation to the audit committee:
a. A statement as to whether the audit committee is satisfied that the external auditor is
independent of the organisation. The statement should specifically address:
i the policy and controls that address the provision of non-audit services by the external
auditor, and the nature and extent of such services rendered during the financial year,
ii. the tenure of the external audit firm and, in the event of the firm having been involved in a
merger or acquisition, including the tenure of the predecessor firm;

i the rotation of the designated external audit partner.

d. The audit committee's views on the effectiveness of the chief audit executive and the
arrangements for internal audit.

e. The audit committee's views on the effectiveness of the design and implementation of internal
financial controls, and on the nature and extent of any significant weaknesses in the design,
implementation or execution of internal financial controls that resulted in material financial loss,
fraud, corruption or error.

f.  The audit committee's views on the effectiveness of the CEO and the finance function.

Committee responsible for nominations of members of the governing body

61.

Refer to paragraph 50 for the recommended disclosures in relation to the committee responsible for nominations.

All members of the committee for nominations should be non-executive members of the governing
body, and the majority should be independent.

Committee responsible for risk governance

63.

If the committees for audit and risk are separate, the governing body should consider for one or
more members to have joint membership of both committees for more effective functioning.

Committee responsible for remuneration

65.

66.

67.

The governing body should consider allocating oversight of remuneration to a dedicated committee
or adding it to the responsibilities of another committee as is appropriate for the organisation.

All members of the committee for remuneration should be non-executive members of the governing
body, with the majority being independent non-executive members of the governing body.

The committee for remuneration should be chaired by an independent non-executive member.

Social and ethics committee

68.

69.

70.

For some companies, the establishment of a social and ethics committee is a statutory
requirement. The governing body of any organisation not so obliged should consider allocating
oversight of, and reporting on, organisational ethics, responsible corporate citizenship, sustainable
development and stakeholder relationships to a dedicated committee, or adding it to the
responsibilities of another committee as is appropriate for the organisation.

The responsibilities of the social and ethics committee should include its statutory duties (if
applicable) and any other responsibilities delegated to it by the governing body.

The social and ethics committee should, subject to legal provisions, have executive and non-
executive members, with a majority being non-executive members of the governing body.

Evaluations of the performance of the governing body
Principle 9: The governing body should ensure that the evaluation of its own performances and that of its committees, its chair
and its individual members, support continued improvement in its performance and effectiveness.

71.
72.

73.

74.

75.
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The governing body should assume responsibility for the evaluation of its own performance and
that of its committees, its chair and its individual members by determining how it should be
approached and conducted.

The governing body should appoint an independent non-executive member to lead the evaluation

of the chair's performance if a lead independent is not in place.

A formal process, either externally facilitated or not in accordance with methodology approved by

the governing body, should be followed for evaluating the performance of the governing body, its

committees, its chair and its individual members at least every two years.

Every alternate year, the governing body should schedule in its yearly work plan an opportunity for

consideration, reflection and discussion of its performance and that of its committees, its chair and

its members as a whole.

The following should be disclosed in relation to the evaluation of the performance of the

governing body:

a. A description of the performance evaluations undertaken during the reporting period, including
their scope, whether they were formal or informal, and whether they were externally facilitated
or not.

b. An overview of the evaluation results and remedial actions taken.

c. Whether the governing body is satisfied that the evaluation process is improving its
performance and effectiveness.
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Appointment and delegation to management Compliant
Principle 10: The governing body should ensure that the appointment of, and delegation to, management contribute to role
clarity and the effective exercise of authority and responsibilities.
CEO appointment and role

76.

77.

78.

79.

80.

81.

82.

83.

The governing body should appoint the CEO.

The CEO should be responsible for leading the implementation and execution of approved

strategy, policy and operational planning, and should serve as the chief link between management

and the governing body.

The CEO should be accountable, and report to, the governing body.

The CEO should not be a member of the remuneration, audit or nomination committees, but

should attend by invitation any meeting, or part thereof, if needed to contribute pertinent insights

and information.

The CEO and the governing body should agree on whether the CEO takes up additional

professional positions, including membership of other governing bodies outside the organisation.

Time constraints and potential conflicts of interest should be considered and balanced against the

opportunity for professional development

The governing body should satisfy itself that there is succession planning for the CEO position in N/A

place to provide continuity of executive leadership. Succession planning should be reviewed

periodically, and should provide for both succession in emergency situations and succession over

the longer term.

The governing body should formally evaluate the performance of the CEO against agreed

performance measures and targets at least annually.

The following should be disclosed in relation to the CEO:

a. The notice period stipulated in the CEO’s employment contract and the contractual conditions
related to termination

b. Other professional commitments of the CEO, including membership of governing bodies
outside the organisation;

c. Whether succession planning is in place for the CEO.

Delegation

84.

85.

86.

87.

88.

89.

The governing body should set the direction and parameters for the powers which are to be
reserved for itself, and those that are to be delegated to management via the CEO.

The governing body should approve a delegation of authority framework that articulates its set
direction on reservation and delegation of power.

The governing body should ensure that the delegation of authority framework addresses the
authority to appoint executives who will serve as ex officio-executive members of the governing
body and to make other executive appointments.

The governing body should oversee that key management functions are:

a. headed by an individual with the necessary competence and authority, and

b. adequately resourced.

The governing body should satisfy itself that there is succession planning in place for executive
management and other key positions to provide continuity of leadership. Succession planning
should be reviewed periodically and provide for both succession in emergency situations and
succession over the longer term.

A statement by the governing body on whether it is satisfied that the delegation of authority
framework contributes to role clarity and the effective exercise of authority and responsibilities
should be disclosed.

Partially
comply

Professional and corporate governance services to the governing body

Risk governance Compliant
Principle 11: The governing body should govern risk in a way that supports the organisation in setting and achieving its
strategic objectives.

7 The governing body should consider the need to receive periodic independent assurance on the Non-
' effectiveness of risk management. compliant
8 The nature and extent of the risks and opportunities the organisation is willing to take should be Partially
’ disclosed without compromising sensitive information. comply
In addition, the following should be disclosed in relation to risk:
a. An overview of the arrangements for governing and managing risk.
b. Key areas of focus during the reporting period, including objectives, the key risks that the
organisation faces, as well as undue, unexpected or unusual risks and risks taken outside of Partially
9. risk tolerance levels. comply
c. Actions taken to monitor the effectiveness of risk management and how the outcomes were
addressed.
d. Planned areas of future focus.
Compliance governance Compliant
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Principle 13: The governing body should govern compliance with applicable laws and adopted, non-binding rules, codes and standards in
a way that supports the organisation being ethical and a good corporate citizen.

23.
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The following should be disclosed in relation to compliance:
a. An overview of the arrangements for governing and managing compliance. Partially
b. Key areas of focus during the reporting period. comply

Governance
processes in
place as are



25.

c. Actions taken to monitor the effectiveness of compliance management and how the
outcomes were addressed.

d. Planned areas of future focus.

Details of monitoring and compliance inspections by environmental regulators, findings of non-
compliance with environmental laws, or criminal sanctions and prosecutions for such non-
compliance should be disclosed.

Remuneration governance
Principle 14: The governing body should ensure that the organisation remunerates fairly, responsibly and transparently so as to promote
the achievement of strategic objectives and positive outcomes in the short, medium and long term.
Remuneration policy

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

The governing body should assume responsibility for the governance of remuneration by setting
the direction for how remuneration should be approached and addressed on an organisation-wide
basis.
The governing body should approve policy that articulates and gives effect to its direction on fair,
responsible and transparent remuneration.
The remuneration policy should be designed to achieve the following objectives:
a. To attract, motivate, reward and retain human capital.
b. To promote the achievement of strategic objectives within the organisation's risk
appetite.
c. To promote positive outcomes.
d. To promote an ethical culture and responsible corporate citizenship.
The remuneration policy should address organisation-wide remuneration and include provision for
the following specifically
a. Arrangements towards ensuring that the remuneration of executive management is fair
and responsible in the context of overall employee remuneration in the organisation.
b. The use of performance measures that support positive outcomes across the economic,
social and environmental context in which the organisation operates; and/or all the
capitals that the organisation uses or affects.
c. If the organisation is a company, the voting by shareholders on the remuneration policy
and implementation report, and for the implementation of related responding measures
as outlined under Voting on Remuneration below.
All elements of remuneration that are offered in the organisation and the mix of
these should be set out in the remuneration policy, including:
a. base salary, including financial and non-financial benefits,
b. variable remuneration, including short and long-term incentives and deferrals;
C. payments on termination of employment or office; d sign-on, retention and restraint payments,
d. the provisions, if any, for pre-vesting forfeiture (malus) and post-vesting forfeiture (claw-back) of
remuneration;
e. any commissions and allowances; and

The governing body should oversee that the implementation and execution
of the remuneration policy achieves the objectives of the policy.

Remuneration report

32.

The governing body should ensure that remuneration is disclosed by means
of a remuneration report in three parts:

a. A background statement.

b. An overview of the main provisions of the remuneration policy.

Background statement

33.

The background statement should briefly provide context for remuneration considerations and

decisions, with reference to:

a. internal and external factors that influenced remuneration,

b. the most recent results of voting on the remuneration policy and the implementation report and
the measures taken in response thereto,

c. key areas of focus and key decisions taken by the remuneration committee during the
reporting period, including any substantial changes to the remuneration policy;

d. whether remuneration consultants have been used, and whether the remuneration committee
is satisfied that they were independent and objective;

e. the views of the remuneration committee on whether the remuneration policy achieved its
stated objectives; and\

f.  future areas of focus.

Overview of remuneration policy

34.
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The overview of the main provisions of the remuneration policy should address the objectives of
the policy and the manner in which the policy seeks to accomplish these. The overview should
include the following:
a. The remuneration elements and design principles informing the remuneration arrangements
for executive management and, at a high level, for other employees.
b. Details of any obligations in executive employment contracts which could give rise to payments
on termination of employment or office.
c. A description of the framework and performance measures used to assess the
achievement of strategic objectives and positive outcomes, including the relative
weighting of each performance measure and the period of time over which it is
measured.
d. Anillustration of the potential consequences on the total remuneration for executive
management, on a single, total figure basis, of applying the remuneration policy under
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minimum, on-target and maximum performance outcomes.

e. An explanation of how the policy addresses fair and responsible remuneration for executive
management in the context of overall employee remuneration.

f. The use and justification of remuneration benchmarks.

g. The basis for the setting of fees for non-executive directors.

h. A reference to an electronic link to the full remuneration policy for public access.

Implementation report

35.

The implementation report, which includes the remuneration disclosure in terms of the Companies

Act, should reflect the following:

a. The remuneration of each member of executive management, which should include in

separate tables:

i.a single, total figure of remuneration, received and receivable for the reporting period, and all
the remuneration elements that it comprises, each disclosed at fair value,

ii. the details of all awards made under variable remuneration incentive schemes in the current
and prior years that have not yet vested, including the number of awards, the values at date
of grant, their award, vesting and expiry dates (where applicable); and the fair value at the
end of the reporting period; and

iii. the cash value of all awards made under variable remuneration incentive schemes that were
settled during the reporting period.

b. An account of the performance measures used and the relative weighting of each, as a result
of which awards under variable remuneration incentive schemes have been made, including:
the targets set for the performance measures and the corresponding value of the award
opportunity; and for each performance measure, how the organisation and executive
managers, individually, performed against the set targets.

c. Separate disclosure of, and reasons for, any payments made on termination of
employment or office
Cc. A statement regarding compliance with, and any deviations from, the
remuneration policy.

Assurance
Principle 15: The governing body should ensure that assurance services and functions enable an effective control environment, and that
these support the integrity of information for internal decision-making and of the organisation’s external reports.

Combined assurance

42.

The governing body should oversee that the combined assurance model is designed and
implemented to cover effectively the organisation's significant risks and material matters through a
combination of the following assurance service providers and functions as is appropriate for the
organisation:

c. Internal auditors, internal forensic fraud examiners and auditors, safety and process
assessors, and statutory actuaries

e. Other external assurance providers such as sustainability and environmental auditors,
external actuaries, and external forensic fraud examiners and auditors.

Internal audit

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.
53.

54,

55.

56.
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The governing body should assume responsibility for internal audit by setting the direction for the
internal audit arrangements needed to provide objective and relevant assurance that contributes to
the effectiveness of governance, risk management and control processes. The governing body
should delegate oversight of internal audit to the audit committee, if in place.

The governing body should approve an internal audit charter that defines the role and associated
responsibilities and authority of internal audit, including addressing its role within combined
assurance and the internal audit standards to be adopted.

The governing body should ensure that the arrangements for internal audit provide for the
necessary skills and resources to address the complexity and volume of risk faced by the
organisation, and that internal audit is supplemented as required by specialist services such as
those provided by forensic fraud examiners and auditors, safety and process assessors, and
statutory actuaries.

If a chief audit executive (CAE) position is provided for in the arrangements for internal audit, the
governing body should ensure that the position is set up to function independently from
management who designs and implements the controls that are in place, and that the position
carries the necessary authority.

The governing body should approve the appointment of the CAE, including the employment
contract and remuneration of the CAE, and ensure that the person who fills the position has the
necessary competence, gravitas and objectivity.

For reasons of independence, the CAE should have access to the chair of the audit committee.
For reasons of independence, the CAE should not be a member of executive management, but
should be invited to attend executive meetings, as necessary, to be informed about strategy and
policy decisions and their implementation.

Where internal audit services are co-sourced or outsourced, the governing body should ensure that

there is clarity on who fulfils the role of CAE.

The CAE should report to the chair of the audit committee on the performance of duties and
functions that relate to internal audit. On other duties and administrative matters, the CAE should
report to the member of executive management designated for this purpose as appropriate for the
organisation.

The
Company is
N/A manged by
the Manager
and has no
employees

Compliant = Remarks

Governance
processes in
place as are
appropriate
to the size
and scope of
the
Company’s
operations

Non-
compliant

N/A

Due to the
size and
scope of the
Company’s
operations,
the
Company
does not
have an
internal audit
function

Non-
compliant



58 The governing body should monitor on an ongoing basis that internal audit:
) a. follows an approved risk-based internal audit plan; and
b. reviews the organisational risk profile regularly, and proposes adaptations to the internal
audit plan accordingly
The governing body should ensure that internal audit provides an overall statement annually as to

59. . ST h
the effectiveness of the organisation's governance, risk management and control processes.
60 The governing body should ensure that an external, independent quality review of the internal audit
" function is conducted at least once every five years.
61. The governing body should obtain confirmation annually from the CAE that internal audit conforms

to a recognised industry code of ethics.

Stakeholder Relationships Compliant | Remarks
Principle 16: In the execution of its governance role and responsibilities, the governing body should adopt a stakeholder-inclusive
approach that balances the needs, interests and expectations of material stakeholders in the best interests of the organisation over time.
Stakeholder relationships

4. The governing body should exercise ongoing oversight of stakeholder relationship management and, in
particular, oversee that it results in the following:
a. Measurement of the quality of material stakeholder relationships, and appropriate responses to Non-
the outcomes. compliant
5. The following should be disclosed in relation to stakeholder relationships:
a. An overview of the arrangements for governing and managing stakeholder relationships. Non-
b. Key areas of focus during the reporting period. compliant

c. Actions taken to monitor the effectiveness of stakeholder management and how the outcomes
were addressed.
d. Future areas of focus.
Shareholder relationships

10.  The minutes of the AGMs of listed companies should be made publicly available. N/A
Relationships within a group of companies
18.  The holding company should disclose an overview of the group governance framework that is Non-
implemented across the group. compliant
19. | The subsidiary company should disclose what responsibilities it has delegated to board committees of Non-
the holding company and the extent to which it has adopted the policies and procedures of the holding compliant
company.
Responsibilities of institutional investors Compliant = Remarks

Principle 17: The governing body of an institutional investor organisation should ensure that responsible investment is practiced by the
organisation to promote the good governance and the creation of value to the companies in which it invests.
20. The governing body of an institutional investor should assume responsibility for governing responsible N/A
investing by setting the direction for how it should be approached and conducted by the organisation.
21.  The governing body should approve policy that articulates its direction on responsible investment. This
policy should provide for the adoption of a recognised responsible investment code, principles and
practices.
22.  The governing body should delegate to management, if in place, or alternatively, to the outsourced
service provider if investment decisions and investment activities are outsourced, the responsibility to
implement and execute its policy on responsible investment.
23.  Where the institutional investor outsources investment decisions or investment activities to custodians,
nominees, consultants or other service providers, the governing body should oversee that the
outsourcing is regulated by formal mandate which reflects and gives effect to its responsible investment
policy.
24.  The governing body should ensure that service providers are held accountable for complying with the
formal mandate.
25 The responsible investment code adopted by the institutional investor and the application of its
principles and practices should be disclosed.
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ANNEXURE 8 — SARS LICENSE

Lege Goune Y SARS

Legal Advisory
South African Revenue Service
Venture Capital
Company Office
Enquiries i i
Mxalisi Radebe The Public Officer South African Revenue Service
Sunstone Capital Limited
(sgv:‘:;:gubg?.%o PO Box 1277 15t Floor, Blocks A and B,
Gallo Manor Megawatt Park, Maxwell Driva,
Direct Line 2052 Sunninghill, Sandton
011602 3839 {No postal delivenes to this addrass)
Facsimile
011602 3525
Private Bag X170, Rivonia, 2128
gov.za o)
Sector per email: jeffm@vems.co.za SARS online: waw.sars.gov.za
VCC Office
Sefarance Attention: Jeff Miller
Date
19 February 2018

Dear Public Officer
APPROVAL OF APPLICATION FOR VENTURE CAPITAL COMPANY STATUS

We refer to your application to register as a Venture Capital Company (VCC) in
terms of section 12J of the Income Tax Act No. 58 of 1962 (*the Act”).

The application has been successful and the company is now an approved VCC.

Your reference number is VCC-0101, Please quote this reference number when
communicating with SARS.

Please note that should the company at any stage fail to comply with the provisions
of section 12J of the Act the approval may be withdrawn and the company could be
liable for penaities. You may refer to the VCC reference guide on the SARS website
for guidance in this regard.

Yours faithfully

£ dibe

Mxpblisi Radebe
Vv

ISSUED ON BEHALF OF THE COMMISSIONER FOR THE SOUTH AFRICAN
REVENUE SERVICE

Page 101
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ANNEXURE 9 — WHAT IS SECTION 12J

Background
One of the main challenges to the economic growth of small and medium-sized businesses and junior mining
exploration is access to equity finance.

To assist these sectors in terms of equity finance, government has implemented a tax incentive for investors in
such enterprises through the Venture Capital Company (VCC) regime.

The VCC is intended to be a vehicle to attract retail investors. It has the benefit of bringing together small investors
as well as concentrating investment expertise in favour of the small business sector.

With effect from 1 July 2009, investors (any taxpayers) can claim an income tax deduction in respect of the
expenditure incurred in the subscription for equity in a VCC shares.

The VCC legislation is subject to a 12-year sunset clause i.e. it ends on 30 June 2021. This will allow for review
of the efficiency of regime and a decision will then be made as to whether it should be continued.

What does this mean for the Investor in Sunstone?

The full amount invested in Sunstone, to the extent it is approved by SARS as a VCC, is 100% deductible from
your income in the year in which the investment is made. This applies to individuals, companies and trusts.

An investor in Sunstone should therefore obtain a 45 % tax incentive (for an individual tax payer at maximum
marginal rate) at the time of investment.

If the investment in Sunstone is held for a minimum period of time of 5 years the tax benefit conferred at the date
of investment will become permanent, i.e. No recoupment of the tax benefit in the hands of the investor when the
investment in the Sunstone is subsequently realised, provided Sunstone’s approval by SARS as a VCC has not
for any reason been withdrawn.

Sunstone is able to invest in companies with total assets up to R50 million (previously R20m). Sunstone is able to
consider investment in larger, more established companies, significantly expanding the investment universe and
reducing investment risk.

Governing Regulation

Section 12J is subject to the provisions of the Income Tax Act 58 of 1962 (the Act). Section 12J was introduced
to cater for the deductions in respect of expenditure incurred in exchange for the issue of venture capital company
shares.

An overview of how it works

Qualifying Investors will invest in approved VCC’s in exchange for the issue of Venture Capital Shares and investor
certificates. Investors can claim tax deductions in respect of their investments in an approved VCC.

The approved VCC will, in turn, invest in qualifying investee companies in exchange for qualifying shares.

Who qualifies to be an Investor?

Any taxpayer qualifies to invest in an approved VCC.

Qualifying investors can claim income tax deductions in respect of the expenditure actually incurred to acquire
shares in approved VCCs.

Where any loan or credit is used to finance the expenditure in acquiring a venture capital share and remains owing
at the end of the year of assessment, the deduction is limited to the amount for which the taxpayer is deemed to
be at risk on the last day of the year of assessment.

No deduction will be allowed where the taxpayer is a connected person to the VCC.

On request from SARS, the investor must verify a claim for a deduction by providing a VCC Investor Certificate that
has been issued by an approved VCC, stating the amount of the investment and the year of assessment in which
the investment was made.

Except in the case of Venture Capital Shares held by a taxpayer for longer than five years, the deduction is
recouped (recovered) if the taxpayer disposes of the Venture Capital Shares to the extent of the initial VCC
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investment (under the general recoupment rules of section 8(4) of the Act)).

Standard income tax and CGT rules apply in respect of VCC shares.

What supporting documents will the investor receive from the VCC?

The approved VCC must issue investor certificates to its investors. This will provide SARS with the proof it needs
to allow the investor the relevant tax deduction.

Who qualifies to be an Investee?

The Investee must be a company; The company must be a resident;

The company must not be a controlled group company in relation to a group of companies;

The company’s tax affairs must be in order (a tax clearance certificate must be requested from SARS to
support this requirement);

The company must be an unlisted company (section 41 of the Act) or a junior mining company; A junior mining
company may be listed on the Alternative Exchange Division (AltX) of the JSE Limited;

During any year of assessment, the sum of the “Investment Income” derived by the company must not exceed
20% of its gross income for that year of assessment;

The company must not carry on any of the following impermissible trades:

Any trade carried on in respect of immoveable property, except trade as a hotel keeper (includes bed and
breakfast establishments);

Financial service activities such as banking, insurance, money-lending and hire purchase financing; Provision
of financial or advisory services, including legal, tax advisory, stock broking, management consulting, auditing,
oraccounting;

Operating casino’s or other gambling related activities including any other games of chance; Manufacturing,
buying or selling liquor, tobacco products or arms or ammunition; or

Any trade carried on mainly outside the Republic.

There are no special tax rules for investee companies. The standard tax rules will apply.

Requirements to be met by Section 12J companies

The VCC must satisfy the following requirements by the end of each year of assessment after the expiry of 36
months from the first date of issue of Venture Capital Shares:

A minimum of 80% of the expenditure incurred by the VCC to acquire assets must be for qualifying shares,
and each investee company must, immediately after the issuing of the qualifying shares, hold assets with a
book value not exceeding: R500 million in any junior mining company; or R50 million in any other qualifying
company.

The expenditure incurred by the VCC to acquire qualifying shares in any one qualifying company must not
exceed 20% of any amounts received in respect of the issue of Venture Capital Shares.

Responsibilities of an approved VCC

The VCC must maintain a record of all its investors. A copy of this record must be submitted to SARS in February
and August of each year. The records must contain at least the following details of the investors:

Taxpayer Reference Number

Name of entity

Physical address

Nature of trade

Contact details

Number of shares issued (per investor)
Value of shares (per investor)

Date of issue of shares (per investor)
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The VCC must maintain a record of all its investees. A copy of this record must be submitted to SARS in February
and August of each year. The records must contain at least the following details of the investees:

Taxpayer Reference Number

Name of entity

Physical address

Nature of trade

Contact details

Number of qualifying shares received (per investee)
Value of qualifying shares (per investee)

Date of receipt of qualifying shares (per investee).

The onus will be on the VCC to ensure that it invests in companies (i.e. investees) that meet the stipulated
requirements. The VCC must issue “VCC investor certificates” to qualifying investors in the year in which the
investment is received. The certificates issued by the VCC must include at least the following details:

The VCC reference number as issued by SARS.

The name and address of the VCC issuing the certificate to which enquiries may be directed

The date of receipt of the investment

The name and address of the Investor

The Taxpayer Reference Number of the Investor

The amount of the investment

On request from the Minister of Finance, a VCC must submit a report providing information that the Minister may
prescribe.

In Summary

An investor in Sunstone will obtain a 45 % tax incentive (for an individual tax payer at maximum marginal rate) at
the time of investment.

There is no recoupment of tax incentive at the time of realisation of investment in Sunstone if the investment is
held for a minimum period by the investor of 5 years.
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ANNEXURE 10 - AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Sunstane Capital Limitad
{Ragistrabion number 2017 /41847 308
Financial statements
for the year ended 28 Fabruary 2020

Sunstone Capital Limited
{Aegistration numbar 2017/41847306)
Financial Statemants for the year ended 29 February 2020

General Information

Country of incorporation and domiciie
Nature of business and princlpal activities

Directors

Reglstared office

Postal address

Secretary
Company registration number
Level of assurance

Preparr

Soum Alrica

Invesiment In qualiying companies as dedned in Saction 12J of ne
Income Tax Act

Amarash Chetly
Stariey Medalie
Jeflray Wayne Milier
Avranam Gordon

Bulkiing 2
Pinmill Office Park
164 Katharne Strast
Sandton

2195

PO Bax 1277
Galo Manor
Woodmaad

Gauterg
2052

The Stancard Sank af South Afnica Limitad

PKF Octagon Inc.
Regislered Auditors

ER Gooagman Secrelanal Senvicas
201741847306

These inancial statemeanis have been suotad In compiianca with the
appicable requirements of e Companies Act 71 of 2008.

The inanciai stalsments were indapandently compiad by
N Olgen CA (SA)



Sunstone Capital Limited
(Registration number 2017/418473/06)
Financial Stalemants for the yaar ended 29 February 2020

Contents
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Audit and Risk Commitiee Report 3-4
Directors’ Responsibilies and Approval 5
Directors’ Report 6-8
Indepencant Audior's Report 9-10
Practizonars Compdation Report 11
Stalement of Financial Posltion 12
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Stalement of Cash Flows 16
Accounting Policies 16-20
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Thesa tnancia stalements have baen auditad In compliance with the appicabie requiremants of tne Companias Act 71 of
2008,
Publishea
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Audit and Risk Committee Report

This report 1S proviced by the audit and risk commitiee appointad in respact of tha 2020 Nnancial year of Sunstone Capia)
Limfied.

1. Members of the Audit Commitee
mmammmmueummmumemmmlm:
Name

JW Miller (Chairmar)

A Gordon

S Medale

Tne commitiee is satished that the members thareol have ine required mlmeamemetbmeassatmnmsacmsd(mof
the Companies Act 71 of 2008 and Regulason 42 of the Compenies Ragulason, 2011,

2 Meetings held by the Audk and Risk Commites

The audit commitiee parforms the duties Iald upon Il by Saction 84(7) of tne Cormpanies Act 71 of 2008 as appeopriate for the
siza and scale of the company and actveties by hokling meetings on a panodic basts and by the unrastricted acoass granied 1o
the external sudiiors.

3 Extemnal auditor

The commesiee satisfied Kseif Mirough enguiry that the extemnal audiiors are ndependent as dalinad by the Companies Act 71
of 2008 and &s per the standards stipulated by the auditing profession.

The sualt commiltee agread to ?e terms of the engagement. The awdit fee for the extemal audit nas been considered and
approved laking into consideration such factors as the tming of the audt, the extant of Me work reguired and the scope.

4 Rolkes and Responsibilities

The commitiee 15, Inter aia, responsiile for assisting the board In dscharging Its dubies In respact of the safeguarding of
assels, accounting syslems and practices, Infernal control processas and ihe preparation of ccurate inanda stalements.

5 Seatutory Dutes

« Nomnaled and recommanded the appalntmant for the enswng yesr of ine exiemal sustors of the company who are
registared audiiors and whio, In the opireon of the company, are Independent of tha compary.

« Delermined the fees 1o bie paid 1o he audilors and tha audiioes’ tam of engagement.

» Ensured that the appamtment af the audicrs complies with the Compantas Act, and any other legsiation relating 1o the
appontment of the auditors.

+ Delermined the nature and extent of any non-audit servicas Mat the suciors may provide 1o the company.,
« Prepared a report which has been niciuded In the ennual firancal statemants.

* FRaceivad end gealt with any conoarns relating 10 tha accounting poiicias of the comparry, the conlent of suditing of tha
company's amual Inancia stalements, e Internal inancial controls of the company or &ny relaled mattar, and

*  Made submissions (o the board as reguired on any Matler Conceming the company's accounting palicies, financial contral,
records and reporting.

*  Keep under review the efiactiveness of tha company's Intemnal conirals and risk managements systems; and

« Rewview ano approve the slatemenis to De included n the Annual Reporl concerning Internal cordrols and risk
managament;

Sunstone Capital Limited
(Registration number 2017:418473006)
Financisl Siatements for the year erded 29 Fabruary 2020

Audit and Risk Committee Report

. Wmnmmpaw‘oanmmumkemmbmommmowm.ammmmmmln
financial reporting or other matters. The commiltes shall ensure that these amangements allow proportionate and
Indegencent investigation and such matters and appropriate foliow up ackon.

6. Going Concern
Tha audit committee has satistiad tsall that the company wil ba a going cancam for tha foresssable future.
7. Annual Financis! Statements

Fofiowing the raview of the annual financial statemants the audi sommittes recommend board approval thereol
anc‘sﬂdtrsmwmme <-

d___________“
g‘u ':nmmmm

25 September 2020
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Sunstone Capital Limited
{Registration number 2017.415473106)
Francal Statements for the year ended 29 February 2020

Directors' Responsibilities and Approval

The dirctors are required b terms of the Companies Act 71 0f 2005 to maintan adequate
Wuuwumummma mmmmm«f%mmmm

ther responsbifty o vy tho saate of 3%airz of the Company 23 ot the end of the
memmutmmmmanp«mmmnmq Wit intemational

Financi The are o an opimion on the financial
Reporting Standards. 2Xpress an Independent

The fnoncial Salements are prepered n with and 32 based upon
2pp appiied ang bymauemammmmm

mmmmmn\-m for e system of imtecwa) ANANCIA CONTD estabilzied by he

company and pisce CoNSiderable Imporiance on 3 srong contred environment. To enable e dreciors £ meet

these responediities, the drectors sete standards for Intemal condrD! aimed 3t redocing e iek Of eror OF joss in & CO6!

efiectve M3NNES. The Sandarnds inciude e 2 clearty 32ned famewor effactive

P P e Y S L L L R T
10 martain the ethical standards n

s B e P e e
umnmueﬂl’mg 355E65ING. MaN3agNG and MORTOMNG 3l Known forms of sk a0ross the company.

operating risk cannot eiminated. % minimise that !m
e Epetns 30 Sincal SV SPPICE 1A MANIGEd AANT rEGEIETTEd POCHAES 30 ConEaITE

The direciors are of Ihe opinion. based on the INTOIMIACON 3NC EXPIanatons gvan oy mﬁumesyﬂ!mdma
controé provioes reasonabie assurance that the Mnancial recoros may bemmmuumm tne financal
salaments. Howsver, mgm«muwmmmmm ang rot adsokss. 3ssurance
3gainst matenal misstatement o lose

The draclors have reviewed the company’s mmmmmmbzzmm%m1 ana, m ight of this raview ana
the current faancial postion. they are satsfied that the company has or had access © adaquate resources o contnu in
Operatonal existence for M foresesabletare.

The exiemal 3ustors are responsibie for incependently 3uditing and reporting on e fnancat statements. The
tnanca & mmmmmwmmﬁm;mmmm presented on pages 310 10

The financial 12t0 27, Mﬂ*ﬂeﬂlﬂm!ﬂmﬂ CONCem basis. Were approved by
mm«azzoawer 'J#i e Deha¥ by s

7y

‘Amareah Chetty mﬁma

Approva of fnanclal statements

22 October 2020
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Directors' Report

mmwemmmmmrmﬂmmwmammmnwumm
ended 28 February 2020.

1.  Incorporation
The company was incorporated on 21 Saptember 2017 and cbianed Its certificate 1o commeance DUSINESS on the sama day.
2 Nature of business

Sunstona Capial Limitad Is 2 Vanture Capital Compary licensed as & Financial Senvices Provider In 1erms of saction 8 of the
Financtai Advisory ana inlermeadary Sarvices Act, 2002 (Act No. 37 of 2002) under ficensa number FSP48E70. It & regisierad
With the Soutn Alrican Aevanue Senvice as a registerad veniure capital company under registzation number VCC-0101.

Sunstons Capital Limited’s business modal IS to provioa rent options on movaadle assals 10 varous counterparties iowng
mmbmmanq ummummmma&mmmmummnwwm
mmmmsmmmmmmmmmmm&&mmwm
on high-yisiding, dhvidend ganarating moveable 2s55eis Which It s abie 1o rent out. In order 10 ensure spaedy deplyment of
caital ang bquidity.

There have baen no matenal changes to the nature of the company's businase from the prior year.
32 Review of financial results and activites

The fnancia statements have baen prapared In accordance with international Financlal Aeporting Standards and Ihe
requrements of e Companies Act 71 of 2008. The accounting policies have bean applied consistently compared 10 the prior
year.

Al 29 Feoruary 2020, the Net Asset Value of Ordinary shares was R970.90 (2019: R236.20), B Orainary shares was R1 016.69
{2019: N#), US Crdinary shares was RSS8.87 (2019: Nif) per share.

Fuil catais of tha tnancid position, results of oparations and casn flows of he compay are sel out In thesa financial
stalements.

Inve siment activity

Automobus Proprissary Limitad ("Automobus”™)

Dunng the year, Sunston2 Capital Investas sn amount of B2 020 000 Info Automodus Proprietary Uimited for 3 63°% equily
siaka. Aulomobus Carmies on tha business of cwning and renting venices to commerdial fieet operators. As the current year is
the Nirst year of rvestment, tha investmant has been vaiued al cost.

Growth Motors Proprietary Limited (" Growth Motors™)

Dunng the year, Sunstone Capital rwested an amount of R30S 500 into Growth Motors Propriatary Limited for & 69.03% eqully
staka. Growth Motors camies on the business of owning and renting vehicles {o commercial Neet operalors. As the current year
Is the first year of investment, the investment has been valued at cost

Sunboard Rensals Proprietary Limhed (“Sunboard™)

During tha year, Sunstone Capital Investad an amount of A2 909 500 Into Sunboard Aentals Proprietary Limited for 8 63%
aquity stake, Sunboard camles on the businass of owning and rentng svertising Dilboards 0 media companies. As the
current year Is the first yaar of rvestment, tha investment has bean vaiued al cost.

Truckspot Proprietary Limised (" Truckspot™)

During the year, Sunstona Capial rwesled an amount of R2 650 000 ito Truckspat Propretary Limited for 2 9% equily
siake. Truckspot camies on the business of cwning and renting vehicies 1o commercial Nleet operators. As fe current year is
the first year of rwestment, the investmeant has been vaiued at cost.

Randburg Van Rentals Propriatory Limked ("RVR™)

Dunng the prior year Sunstone Capital invested an amount of R2 632 000 into Randburg Van Rentals Propnalory Limiled
(AVR) for 8 63% eqully stake. AVR owns and rents out vehicles 1o commercial fleat operators. Duning the current year a far
value gain was recognisad on the vaiue of the invesiment of R435 642,
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4 Share caphal
Raler 1o rote 5 of tha annual inancial statemerts for tha movement in auTionsad 2nd issued shara capaal.
5.  DNigends

Divisends of R520 916 were deciared ourng tha year to ordinary sharaholders. No dividends were deciared to UB Ordinary
and B Ordinary sharehoksars,

6 Fund management agreement

Tne compary has entared into an agreement with Sunstone Capial Managers Propnatary Limied 10 act as the soie and
exclusive manager of iha business.

In terms af the agreement, the manager Will manage and supervise the day to day oparaons of the Company, subject io the
relevant prowisions of the Memaranoum of Incorporabon of the Company, iha Companies Acl, the Income Tax Act | the
requraments of any ralevant and appicabie reguiatory or statutory autionty andg ail reasonable restraints and direcives
Imposea ty the Board.

The manager reduced the sssat management fee to 1.5% (prewvious years 2%) on al new funas raised by the manager on
penal! of the company, during he current raparting pericd.

Tne term of Tie agreement IS 10 years, whic commenced on 1 November 2017.

7. Directorae

The dreciors in office at the date of thes repant are as follows:

Directors Changes

Amarash Chelly Non-executive Charman

Staniey Medalie Non-executve

Jetirey Wayne Miller Nan-executve

Avranam Gordon Non-execulive Appornted 28 August 2020
Bruce King Non-executve Rasigned 01 Juy 2019

8 Special resolutions

No special rasolutions weare mace by the company duning the penod coverad by this report.

9. Events aiter the reporting period

On 30 January 2020 tne pandamic known as OOVID-19 was dectared a global amergancy by ihe Wornd Heait Crganisation
(WHO) and has had a significant economic impact on tha giobal economy. Many countries, including South Africa have
responded by impliementing & phased nallonwide lockdown 1o respond 1o the pandemic. The effacts af this phesaa approach
nawve caused a sharp dacling in economic actvity, end In some cases lemporary closure of cperations. The Geclors have
tskan proactve steps In the light of the containment measwres to miligete the adverse elffects cause by he pandemic.
Directors responsas iInclude:

«  Mantaining regular lines of commumication with all stakenaiders, through positive engagament and Fansparancy Wit
sharehokiers, CUSIOMErs, eMpioyeas, Capila providers and olher stakeholders;

«  Ensuring fis ablity {0 provide services remotely Dy ensuring stalf have connectivity as they woek from hame.

Thne arectors balieva that tha mpact of the pandemic on the Companys operaticns are manageabia ihrough the
implamentation of business interruption and continuity management sirategias.

Tne fulf Impact of the pandemic IS uncerlain as It 15 based on the expectations of fulure evenis,

Al yazr and fe dreclors are satsfied that there are no agjustments raguirad @ue 1o this pandemic.

10. Going concem

The direciors bedeve Mat the company has acegquaie tnandal resources 1o continue n operation for the foreseeable Tuture
and tne mnancid sialements have been prepared on 2 Qoing concem basis. The drectors have satished
themsetves thal tha company is In 2 sound financial position and that it has access o sufficlent barowing faclities 1o meet IS
foreseeable cash requirements. The directors sre not aware of any new matevial changas that may adversely Impact the

company. The drectors are also not anare of any matenal non-compliance with statutory of reguiaiory requirements or of any
penang changes o lagisiaton which may afect tha company.

11. Auditors
PKF Cciagon inc. were appointed as auditors for tha company for 2020, with Raymond Blach beng the casignated iezd audit
partner.

12. Secretary
The company secretary is ER Gooaman Secratanal Sanvicas.



PKF OCTAGON

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Directors of Sunsions Capital Limited
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sunstone Capital Limited set out on pages 12 to 25, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 20 February 2020, and the statement of proft or loss and other
comprebensive Income, statament of changes n equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, snd
nates to the financial statements, including & summary of sigaificant accounting policies,

In our opinéon, the arnual finencis ststements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
Sunsione Capital Limiled a3 &t 29 February 2020, and its financial performanca and cash Nows for the year then
ended in d with Infemational Financie! Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies
Act 71 of 2008.

Basls for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with intemational Standards on Audding (158s). Our respensiities under
those standards are further descoribed In the Auditor's Responsibiiies for the Audit of the Financial Statements
saction of cur report, We are independent of the company in sccordance with the Independent Regulatory Bosrd
BWMdPMUWMWM(IRMMﬂMWMmm
requirements applicable 1o performing audits of financal staternents in South Africa. We have fulfiled our other
ethical responsibiies in accordance with the IRBA Code and In accordance with other sthical

appicatle 1o performing audits In South Africa. The IRBA Code & consistent with the Internationa Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Intemational Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Inchuding
Inlemationsl Indeperdence Standards) (Paris 1, 3, 4A and 48). We bellevs that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficlent and appropriate 1o provide a basis Sor our epinica.

Emphasis of matter: Subsequent Event: The impact of the uncertainty of COVID-18

We draw attertion to note 9 of the direciors’ report, which desls with subsequent event and specificaly the
passibie effects of the future implications of COVID-18 on Sunstone Capital Limited's, future prospects,
parformance end cashiows. Management have also cescribed how they plan to deal with these events and
circumstances. Our apinion is not medified In respect of this matwer,

Other Information

The Directars are reeponsibie for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report as
required by the Companies Act of South Africa 35 wall 85 the delalied income statemert, prasented an pages 26,
The other information doas not Include the ennual financial elatemeants and our auditors report theraon,

Qur opinion on the annual financial statements does NoL cover the other information and we do not express an
auds opinicn or any form of assurance conclusion hereon.

In connection with our sudit of he annual linancial stalements, cur responsibiity s to read the other information
and, in doing 0, consider whathee the other information is materially inconsistent with the snnual financial
statements or our knewledge cbtaned in the audit, or otherwise sppears to be materaly misstated. If, based on
the work we have pedformed, we conclude that there is a matenial missiatement of this other informalion, we are
required fo report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements:

The drectors are responsidie for the preparstion and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with intemationsl Financial Reporting Standards and the requs of the Companies Act of South Africa, and
for such intamal controd as the diractors delermine is r y to enahle the praparation of financial ststements
that are free from material misstatement, whethar due fo frawd or error,
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PXF Cotagon Inootporsted | Ti «27 0010 003 0160 | By ro@pkiooiagon com

21 Scoil Strwet, Wiy, 2000 | Prieate Bag X352, Highvands Narth, 7037

mww.phiccingos ciam

Blwoion: Narres Sege - Fayrees Bioch - My Brooond - Citted LUegeors - Otewies Masterou - Speed Moces - Saecs Roce - Arciets Schasary
Fure rerzn Pacs Plvost - Fagwn Laso - Norapes s WS - ecies Weeowss Assccists Dtecizr Matfew Viuas

Megataton Mo, LCIASI1 35007 Sraddoe Mo, e 381

PYE Dozpgan w2 marseas B ot e OXF Scurs Aves (re. sest PO bnerrasone Umitas Sevdy of gty rescoences) fres. Nleter PHOY Craagon rer
PR Soam Alncy Inc. pezagr Aty recsra bRty o IRaR T A 1he acinng or 2achane an tha part of sy St iteial rerter or cossoporstard fem o e

70|Page



71|Page

In preparing the financial statements, the di are ragponsibie for ing the pary's abifty to
conlinue 45 a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, mattens relsted 1o going concern and using the paing
concem basis of accounting unless the directors either inlend 1o Tquidate the company or % cease operations, or

have no realistc sitamative but to do so.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financis! Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as » whole are free
from material misstatement, whather due 1o fraud of esror, and to issue an audiior's report that Includes cur
opinion. Reasonable assurance is 8 high level of assurance but is not a guarantes that an sudk conducted in
accordance with ISAs will siways detect @ material misstaternent when it axists. Misstatements can asise from
fraud or esror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, thay could reasonably be expeciad
1o Influence the eccnomic decisions of users taken cn the bass of these financial statemeants.

As pant of an sudit in accardance with ISAs, we exercise professionel judgement a'nd maintsin professicnal
scegplicism throughout the aude. We also:

* Identify and assess the ricks of matarial misstatement of the financisl statements, whether due ta fraud
or errer, design and perform audit procedures responsive to theee risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is suffcient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion. The rigk of net detecting a material
misstalemert resulling from fraud is higher than for one resulting fram eror, &< fraud may involve
colusion, forgery, intentional cmissions, misrepresentations, or the overde of intermal coatrol,

. ObhhanmdmslmdhgoﬂnbemaloumdMbteluﬂthmwmnauﬂlthd

ppropriate in the ci but rot for the purpese of expressing an opinion on the
aﬂodmmufhcmolﬂy‘simlemtrd

* Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonabloness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the direciors’ use of the going concern basis of accountng ang
basad on the audit avidence obtained, whether s L inty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the pany’s ability 3o continus as 3 going concam. If we
conciude thet & material uncensinty exists, we ane required to draw attention in our auditor's repor to
the related daciosures in the financist statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our
opinéon. Qur conclusions ane based on the sudlt evidence ablained up to the date of cur auditor's report,
However, fulure events or conditions may cause the company to cease 1o continue 83 a going concam,

«  Evaluate the ovarall prasentation, structure and contant of the fnancisl statements, including the
disclosuras, and whether the financlal statements represent the underlying lransactions and events in a
manner that achleves fair presentation.

Wa communicate with the directors regarding, among cther matters, the planned scope and timing of the sudit
and signficant audit findings, including ary signiicant deficiencies in intarnal control that we identdy curing our
sudt.

[P Dvhjw‘/hg

PKF Octagon inc
Raymond Bloch
Director
Registered Auditor

22 October 2020
Johannesburg

Practitioner's Compilation Report

To the management of Sunstone Capkal Limited

lmwmnnmmummmwmnwanmmiz - 26, basad on the Information
you have provided. Thase financial stalemants comprise the Statement of Financial Postion of Sunstone Capital Limitad as
al 23 February 2020, the Statement of Profit or Loss and Ofer Comprenensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equily
and Siztement of Cash Flows %or the year then ended, and & summary of signficant accounting policles and othar
explanatory Information.

1 performed this complation engagement in accordance wilh Infernational Standard on Related Services 4410 (Revisad),
Compiation Engagements,

1 hay [ ana inancial fo assist you In the of thase
eappuedmymase namm:g reposting nevg mm‘wmﬂm
mmammu«mmmmm

mmmmmmmmmummmmmmmmr
responsitily.

Since & MWBMmlemmmevmmmmm
dmlmamnywuwmwmhmmwmm do not express an sudd opinion
O 3 review conciusion on whether thase financial stataments are prepared International Financial Raporting Standards.

N Olren

N Oisen CA (SA)

22 October 2020
Johannesburg
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Sunstone Capital Limited
{(Registration number 2017/41847306)
Financtal Statements for the year ended 29 February 2020

Statement of Financial Position as at 29 February 2020

Figures in Rand Note{s) 2020 2019
Assets
Non-Curent Assals
Irvestnents in quallying companies 2 11 662 642 2632000
Deferred tax 3 - 35783
11 682 632 2667 783
Current Assels
Traoe and othear recaivabies 4 110 000 -
Cash and cash equivalents 13 13414722 £062 901
13528722 8062301
Total Assets 25207 264 10730684
Equity and Liabiiltlies
Equity
Share capital & 24 365 203 10 441 603
Retalnad income 3726 4489
24756928 10446098
Liabliities
Nor-Current Liabiities
Loans from quakfying companies 7 - 105000
Deferrad tax 3 B2 448 -
82 445 105000
Current Lisblitas
Traga and other payables 8 146 026 175588
Dhidend paysbie 221 953 -
367 9858 179 586
Totai Liabilities 450 436 284 586
Total Equity and Liabllities 25 207 3654 10720684
Sunstone Capital Limited
{Regisiration number 2017/418473/06)
Financial Statemants for the year ended 29 Fedruary 2020
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2020 2019
Reverue -] 606 000 125000
Fair value agjustment 10 406 B2 -
Cther oparatng expenses (114 209) (115 541)
Operating profit (loss) 986 432 9459
Investmant Income 11 139 951 33383
Profit (loss) before taxation 1126 234 43312
Taxation 12 {118 231) 22873
Profit (loss) for the year 1008 153 66185
Other comprehansive iIncome - -
Toulcommmmlnm(ms)formeyeu 1008 153 66185
Sunstone Capital Limited
{Regisiration number 2017/41847306)
Financial Slalements for the year enced 29 February 2020
Statement of Changes in Equity
Share capitai  Retaned  Tols equty
Figuras in Rand ncoma
Balance at 01 March 2018 2 880 601 (61 696) 2818995
Protil for the year - 66 186 66 185
Otner comprehansive Income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 66 185 66 185
Issue of shares 8112000 - 8112000
Share tssue costs (551 0E8) - (561 OB6)
Total contributions by and distributions t0 owners of company 7560 914 - 7560914
recognised dglrectly In equity
Balance at 01 March 2019 10 441 605 4438 10 445 083
Protil for the year - 1008 153 1008 153
Otner comprehansive Income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1008 152 10038153
Issue of B ordnary shares 11 562 600 - 11 562 600
Issue of UB ordinary sheres 2818600 - 2818600
Share issue costs (467 602) - (457 602)
Dmdends 10 Ordnary Shareholders - (620 S16) (620 916)
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of company 13923 508 (620 916) 13 302682
recognised directly In equity
Balance at 29 February 2020 24365 203 291725 24756 928
Note(s) 6
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Sunstone Capital Limited

{Regisiration numbar 2017/418473/06)
Financial Stalemants for the year ended 29 Fedruary 2020

Statement of Cash Flows

Figures In Rand Note{s) 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash used In operations 13 (257 775) (175040}
Inlecest income 139 851 33863
Diwvidends recaved 605 000 125000
Net cash from oparating activities 487 176 (16 187)
Cash flows from Investing acivities

Net movemeant In qualtying comparny joan {105 000) 105 000
Purchase of nvestments (8555000) (2632 000)
Net cash from Investing activities (8660 000) {2 527 000)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceecs on shere issue 6 14381200 8112000
Share issua cosls & (457 606) (551 DEB)
Dmdends paid 14 (396 953) >
Net cash from financing activities 13524 641 7560914
Total cash move ment for the year 5351817 5017727
Cash al the bagnning of the year 8062901 3045174
Total cash atend of the year 5 13414718 8062901

Sunstone Capital Limited

(Registration numbar 2017/41847206)
Financia Statements for the year anded 29 February 2020

Accounting Policies

Corporase information

Sunstona Capital Limited is & public company ncorporated and domiciied In Soutn AMca.

1.  Significant accounting policles

The prncipal accounting policies appiied In tne preparation of thase financial statements are set cut Delow.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have baen prepared on the Qoing concamn basis In accordance with, and In comphiance witn,
International Financial Reporting Standards ("FAS™) nd International Finandial Reporting Interpratations Commiktee (MIFRICT)
Interpratations Issued and sffecive at the Tme of preparing these Ninancial ststemants ana the Compansas Act 71 of 2008 of
South Afnica, as amencad.

These Inancial statements comply with the requrements of the SAICA Financial Reporting Guidas as issued by ine Accounting
Practices Commitiee and the Financial Raporting Pronouncemants as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council.

Tne financial statements have been prepared on the NIStonc cost convantion, uniess othenwsa stated 1 the accouniing polickes
which %liow and Incorporate the principal accounting polizes set out below. They are presented In Rands, which Is the
company's functional currency.

Tnese accounting policies are consistant with the previous pernod.

1.2 Significant jJudgements and sources of estimation uncenainty

In preparing the annual inancal statements, the directors &re required to make astimates and assumptions tnat affect the
amounts representad In the annual financial statements and related disciosure. Use of avallable information and ine sppéication
of juagement 1s Inherant in the formation of estimates. Actual resulls in e Tulure could aitier from these estimates which may
be material to the snnua inancial statemeants.

In tha process of applying the accounting poiicies, the arectors nave maoe the folowing esimates and judgaments that hava
the most significant afiects on tha amounts recognised and dsdiosed in ne ennus firancal statemants.

Kay sourcas of estimation uncertainty
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Impairment testing

Tne awectors review and evaluate the camying value of assels wnen evenis or changes In circumstancas suggest that the
carmying amaount may not be recoveradle. Assats are grouped at tne lowes! level for which kientifizbia cash flows are largely
dependent of cash Nlows of other ssats and iabdities. If there are Indicatons that Imparment may have occurred, estmates
are prepared of expacted future cash Hows for each group of asseds.

Wrnen such Indicators axist, managament detesmine ine racoverable smount by parforming value in use and fair vale
calcutations. These calculaions requirs the use of estmates and assumptions. When i 5 nat possitée o datarmine the
racovarable amount for an Individual asset, managament assesses the recovarable amount for tha cash ganeratng urilt to
which the asset balongs.

Taxation

Judgement &5 required In determining the prowision for Income taxes due fo the complexty of legstation. There sre marny
transactions and calculabons for which the uitimate tax celermination s uncersin Suring e ordnary course of business. The
comparny ses Iabilities for anticipated tax audit Issues based on eslimates of whatner addtional 12xes will be due.
Wnere the final tax outcoma of these matters = difarent from (he amounts that were Inlially racorded, such aiferences wil
impact the INcomsa tax and oafamad (ax proVisions in Me pariod In wiich such oslarmination Is made.

The company recegnises the net future tax benaft related to deferrad income 12x assels 1o the exdent that it s probabie that the
deductibie temparary differences wil reversa n the joreseesble future. Assessing the recoverabilily of defermed ncome iax
assels requires the compary 10 make significant estimates relatad to expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future
i=xable Income are based on forecast cash flows rom operations and the appiication of existing lax iaws In each junsdiction.
To the extent that futura cash Nows 2nd taxable Ncome differ sigrificantly from astimates, the abiity of the company 1o realise
the net ceferred tax assets recoroed at the end of tha reporing penod could be Impacied.

Sunstone Capital Limited

(Registration numbar 2017/418473/06)
Financial Statements for the year enced 29 February 2020

Accounting Policies

1.2 Significant jJudgements and sources of estimation uncanainty (continuad)
investments

Invesiments are valued In accorcanca with the Inlemagonal Privale Equity and Ventise Capial Valualion Guigelnes (Edtion
Decermber 2012) using e "Discounied Cash Flow and Net Present Value® vauation medod

mdewmgmrarvmmmmesmmmmmlmmmmmdmososmm
terms of tha Investment wiiich may Impact Its fair valua. in this regard, ine diractors consicer tha economic substance of
Investmant, which may take peecedence over the sirict legal form.

During the imited perod folowing tha date of the relevan! transaction, the directors assess at each measuremeant date whether
changes of evenls subsequent to the relevant ransaction would mmply & change In ivestment's fair valua.

1.2 Financial Inssruments
Classification
mmumwmwmlmmmmmm
Financial assets a1 falr valus through prafit of ioss - designated
= Loans and recevsbies
= Financal lisbiities messurad at amortised cost
Inkial r= cognition and measurement

Financial instruments are Iniisily messared at tha transaction cost when the company becomes a party (o Me contractusl
provisions of the Instruments.

The company classies financial Instruments, or thair companent parts, on intial racognifion &s & fnancial asset, a tnancial
Nablitty of an equiy Instrument in Bccordance with the substance of tha contractual arrangement.

Transaction costs on inancial Instruments are capitalsed to he cost of the Instrument.
Subsaquent measureme nt

mmamvmenwwmormmmwmumvw&vmngamsanunssesmm
from changes In fair value being included in profit of 1o6s for tha pericd.

Net gains or lossas on tha inancial nstruments &t fair value through pro#t or 10ss axciude avisands and interest.

Dizand Income (S recognised in profit or loss 25 part of other Income whan tha company's rignt ta recanve payment s
astablished.

Loans and receivables are subsequently maasured sl amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumuiated
Iimpairmeant losses.

Financial iabilities &t amortised cost are subsequently messured al amortisaa cost using the efactive Interes! method.
Derecognition

Financial sssats &re derecognisad whan the rights 10 raceive cash fiows from iha imvesiments have expirec or have baen
transfested and the company has transfered substantialy all nsks and rewards of ownership.
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Sunstone Capital Limited
megmmmn rumber 2017/41847206)
Financial Statements for the year anded 29 February 2020

Accounting Policies

1.3 Financial Inssruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

For amounts due o the company, swmammsothr prodabilly Mat tha debtor wik eqtar bankruplcy and
detsult of payments are considered InAcalors of mpasrment.

Imparment losses are recognised in prafit of loss.

Imparment losses are reversed when an INcrease In the fnancial asset's recoverable amount can be relaled objectvely o an
avent ocournng after the impairment was recognisad, subject 1o 1ha restriction fiat e camying amount of the Inancial asset at
the date thal the Impairmant is revarsed shall not exceed Wnat tha camying amount would have baen had the impairment not

0ean racognised.
Fair yaiug delsrmination

Fair vaiue Is determinad by the board of directors In accordance with the “intamnational Private Equily and Venture Caplia
Vaiuaton Guidelinas™ which have been endorsed by tha Southam Atrican Ventura Capital end Prwale Equily Associalion. In
accordance therewitn, investments are carmed 2t cost In the frst welve months post investment and thareafter 2t far value.

Lewvel 1, inputs that are guoted market pricas {unadjusled) In 2Ctive markats for identical Insruments.

Level 2: Inputs ofmer than quoled prices Included wiziin Level 1 that are observabie either dreclly (La. as prices) or indirecty
{1.e. carived from prices). This cateqgory Inciudad instrumants valued Using: quotad markat pricas In acive markats for similar
instruments; quoted pricas for Meatical or similar instruments In markals that are considerad less than actve; or valuation
mmlnwumusgmmmmsaremormmmmmmm

Level 3 Inpats hat are unobservabie, This calegory Induces all nstrumants for which e valuation fechnique ncludes inputs
not basad on obsarvable dats and the uncbsesvable Inputs have a significant effect on the instruments vakuation. This calegory
included Instruments Tial are vaiued Desad on Quoled pnoas for simiar Instruments for which significant unocbsarvabie
adustments or assumgtions are raguirad fo refiact differences batwean the instruments.

Vaiuason technigues inciude net present value and discounted cash fiow, CoMPaEnson with simiar instruments for which market
observable pricas exist, Black-Scholes and polynomial option-pricing models and other vaiuabion models. Assumptions inpuls
used In vaiustion tachniques Inciuca risk-ree and banchmark Interes! rates, crad spreads and ohar premia used In estimating
discount rates, bond and egully prices, forelgn currency exchange rales, equity Index prices and expactad volabilies and
corelstions.

Tne objectve of vaiuason tachniques 15 1o amve at a fair valus measurement that reflacts the prica that would be raceived o
sail the assels or paid to transfer the kabiity in an ordarny ransaction between market participanis at the measurament date.
Tne faiz valua of nancia nstrumants that are not Quoted In Ecive markats is catermined by using valustion techniques, Whare
valuation techniques or modals &e usad 1o determine tair valuas, they are validsted and pediodicaly Independently raviewed
by qual¥ied senlar parscnnel. All modeis are authonsad belore thay are used, and modsals are calibraled and back testad to
ensure Mat oulputs reflect actual dats and comparative market prices. To tha extant practicadie, models Use only obsarvabie
data; howewer, areas such as cradd risk (both own and counterparty), volaliities and correéations feguira management
estimates.

Tne far values of nancial assels ana financial Estililies that ara traged In 2ctive Markets ara dased on quoled markst price of
dealer price Quolafions. For all other financial Instruments, the company determénes f2ir values using other valuation
techniques.
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1.2 Financial Inssrume nts {continued)

For fnancial instruments thal trade Infreguently, Izir value Is less abjeciive, end requires varying degrees of judgament
mngmm.wmmmmmm,mmmmwmrmmmsm
Loans to (from) related parties

Loans to refaled partes era ciassilied as loans recaivables.

Loans from related parties are clessified as financial labies al amortsed cost.

Trade and other recei ables

Trade receivadles ara measured al initial recogriion al 1sir value, and are subsaquenty measured at amortised oost using the
effactve inferast rate mathcd. Appropriate allowancas for estimatad Imacoverabie amounts e recognised (n profit or koss

when thare Is objactve evigance that the asset is Impalrad. The aliowance Is measured as the differanca batwean the assels
camying amount and the present value of estimated future casnh flows at the eflective interest rale computad at initisl

recognition.
Trade end omer raceivabias are ciassilied as |0sns and recavabies.
Trade and other payables

Trade payabies are In2ally measured al lak vaiue, and are subsequenty measured a1 amortised cost, using the etiecive
nlerest rate method.

Cash and cashequivaents

mmmmﬂsmmmmmmmmn,mmmmﬁmmwlmnuestnmism
are raadily corvenidle o a known amount of cash and are subject 1o an nsignificant risk of changes In value. These are nitialy
ammbseqmmmcomedmmrvm

14 Tax
Current tax assets and llabllitles

Current tax for current and peioe panods |Is, o the extent unpaid, recognised as a fability. If the amount already paxl in respact
of currant and prior penocs excaeds the amount due for those penods, the axcess Is recognised as an assel.

Current tax liablties (assels) for the current and pece panods are measwred al tha amount axpactad © be paid 1o {recaverad
from} the tax autharities, using the 1ax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacied or subsiantvely enacted by Tie end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and llablitties

A oeterrad tax Babiitty i racognised for 2l faxabie temporary differencas, except to e extent that the deferred I=x labiity
ansestommmrecognnmotan(mnmmmammmmmmumnmaﬂeﬂsm

accounting praft ror {axabie proft (1 loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for 2 decuctibie tamporary differences to the extant mat it Is probabée that taxsble proft wil
te avadabie against which the deductitie temporary Gifierence can be ulliised. A dalarrad tax asset is not recognised whan it
ansas trom the inikal recognition of an asset of iabiity N a ransaction at the ime of (he ransachion, affects nefthar accounting
pront nor exable profit (18X oss).

A caferred tax sssed Is recognised for the carmy foeward Of unusad 12X 108565 and unused STC credils to the extent that It is.
probadie that tuture tsxabie profit will ba available sgainst which the unused tax losses ana unused STC credits can ba utllised.

Defered t=x assals and Eabililles &re measurad &t the tax rates thal are expacted o sppiy 1o tha period whan the asset is
reclised or Me lizDiky |s seftled, based on {ax rates (and 12x 1aws) hal have bean enacled or substantively anacted by the ana
af tha reporting penod.

Sunstone Capital Limited

{Registration number 2017/413473/06)
Financial Statemants for the year anced 29 Feoruary 2020

Accounting Policies

1.4 Tax{continued)
Tax expanses

Current and deferred 1xes are racognised 3s iNcome or an expense and ncuded N profit or loss for the penod, except to the
axtent that the ax ansas from:

=  3atransaction or event which is recognised. in tne same or 2 different period. 10 other comprehensive Income, of

= & businass combinaton.

Current tax and deferred iaxes are charged or cradied o other comprehensive Income If tha tax relales to tems that are
credited or charged, In the same or a different penad, 0 other compeenensve Income,

Current tax and delerred 1axes are chargad or credited alrectly to equity if ne tax refates 1o fems that 2re credited of charged,
in the same or a dilferent period, diracty In equity.

1.5 Share caphal and equity

An equily nstrumeant ts any confract that evidences a resiousl Interest In the assels of 2n entlly after deducting all of fis
fabiliies.
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Sunstone Capital Limited

{Registration number 2017/41847206)

Financial Stalements for the year ended 29 February 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

2020

2019

2 Imrests In qualtying companies

Name of company % % ng Carrying
holding holding amouns 2020 amount 2019
2020 2019
Automobus Propretary Limied £9.00 % - % 20980 000 -
Growth Mcors Propaetary Limisad 69.03 % - % 905 500 -
Randourg Van Ranlsis Proprielary Limiled 69.00 % €9.00 % 3127 642 2632000
Sundoard Rentals Proprietary Limfed 69.00 % -% 2909500 z
Truckspot Proprietary Limitaa 69.00 % - % 2 650 000 -
11 682 642 2632000
Automobus Proprietary Limised
Opening Balance - -
Investment 2090 000 -
Fair Valua Agjustment < -
2 090 000 -
Grow th Motors Proprietary Limhed
Cpening Balance - -
Investmant 806 500 -
Fair Valua Agjustment - -
805 500 -
Randburg Van Rentais Proprietary Limhed
Opening Balance 2632000 -
Invesiment - 2632000
Fair Valua Aojusiment 495 642 -
3127 642 2632 000
Sunboard Rentals Proprietary Limited
Opening Balance = -
Invesiment 2 808 500 -
Fair Valua Agustment - -
2 909 500 -
Truckspot Proprietary Limied
Opening Balance > 4
Investment 28650000 -
Fair Valua Agjustment - =
2 650 000 -
Sunstone Capital Limited
(Registration numbar 2017/418472/06)
Financial Statements for the yesr anded 29 Fedruary 2020
Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2020 2019
3. Defemed tax
Deferrad tax asset / (liabllity)
Artsing as a result of emporary differences on:
Tax losses avaliable for offsat againsl futura taxable iIncome 26576 35783
Fair Valua Agustments (111 024) -
Total net deferred tax assat (llabliity) (62 445 35783
Reconciliation of deferrad ax asset / {llablilty)
Al baginning of year 35783 12910
Incraase / (Dacrease) in 1ax loss available for sat off agamst future texabie Income 7 207) 22873
Deferrad tax efect of fair value adjustments (111 024) -
(62 448 35783
4  Trade and other receivables
Dhiidends recaivabia 110 000 -
5 Cash and cash mm
Cash 8na cash eguivalents consist of:
Bank baiances 12414722 763200
Casn in transit - 530 000
12414722 8062 201
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

2020

2019

6. Share caphai

Authorised

100 000 "B" ORDINARY shares
100,000 "M"™ ORDINARY shares
100,000 "S” ORDINARY shares
100,000 "UB" ORDINARY shares
100,000 “V" ORDINARY shares
1,000,000 ORDINARY shares
500,000 UNCLASSIFIED shares

During the current financial year 11 012 'B' Ordinary shares {2015 NIl) were issued for 8 consideration of B 11 562 600
{2019: NI} and 2732 UB orainary shares (2013: Nil) were issuad for 3 consideralion of R 2818 600 (20150 N¥)

Reconcillation of number of shares Issued:
Reportad as at 01 March - Oranary shares
|SSUEWSME-MWN@S
ISSUEUSMN-BQUII'BWM

Issue of shares - UB Crdinary shares

Issued

Baiance at 1 March ordinary na par valua shares
Orainary shares

B Ordinary Snares

UB Ordinary shares

Share Issue Costs

7. Loans from qualilying companis
Entitle s under common directorship

Rancburg Van Rentais (Ply) Lig

The loan 1s unsecured, baars no Intarest and is repayabie on demand.

Split between non-current and curment pornions

Non-current liabities

8 Trade and other payables

Trace payables
Acrued expenses
Dividends wiihnoiding tax payadle

9. Revenue

Dividends recaived from Cualllying Companies

11158 3046
2 8112

11012 E
2732 E
24902 11158
10441608 2880 691
- 8112000

11 662600 -
2 618600 -
(457 606) (551 082)
24365203 10 441 609
2 106 000

- 105 000

36826 163 836

60 246 16750
48953 -
146 025 179 586
£05 000 125 000
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Sunstone Capital Limited
{Registration numbear 2017/41847306)
Financiat Statements for the year ended 29 Fedbruary 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2020 2019

10. Othar operating gains (losses)

Falrvalue gains (losses)
Invesiment In Randburg van Rentals 2 495642 -

11. Investment Income

Inserest income
Bank ana other cash 139951 33853

12. Taxation
Major components of the tax (Income) expense

Deferred
Defarred {ax 118231 (22 873)

NO provision has been made for 2020 lax &s the company has no 15xabie Income. The estmated 12X loss avaiable for set off
against future taxabie income s R102 502 (2019: R 127 795).

13. Cash used In operations

(Loss) peofit before taxation 1 126384 43312
Adjustments for:

Dmidends recaived (605 000) {125 000)
Interest income (138951) {23 853)
Fair vakie gains (495 642) -
Changes in working caplsal:

Traoe and othar receivabies (110 000) -
Traoe and other payables {332 566) (58 439)

(257 775 {175 040)

14, DNigends paid

Dwdends (620 918) -
Balznce owing at end of the year 221 963

(398 953) =
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Sunstone Capital Limited
{Registration number 2017/418472/06)
Financial Statemnents for the yaar ended 29 February 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures In Rand

2020 2019

15. Reiawed panies

Relationships
Directors

Companies In whnich drectors nave Inferests

Entities witn commeon airectorship
Relatad party balances

Loan accounts - Owing (10} by related pankes
Randburg Van Rentsis Propnatary Limited

A Chetty (Cnasrman of Board of Direciors)

JW MBer

S Medaiie

A Gorgon

Melta Capital Managars Proprietary Limited
Sunistone Managemsant Company Proprietary Limisad
Groves! Corporate Advisory Propeietasy Limsad
Growth Mators Propretary Limited

Sunboard Rentals Propriedary Limited
Automobus Proprietary Limitad

Randburg Van Renials Proprietasy Limited

Amounts Included in Trade receivable (Trade Payable) regarding related parties

Sunsione Manapament Compary Proprelary Limfied
Related party transactions

Share Issue expenses #es pald to {received from) ®laged parties

Grovest Corporate Advisory Propretary Limited
Sunsione Management Compary Propretary Limiied

Dividends paid to {received from) relaed parties
Ranoburg Van Ranlais Propnetary Limited

Compensation to directors and other key management
Drectors leas

16. Directors’ emoluments

- 105 000
= 104 B41
115000 209 530
z 243 250
(605 000) {125 000)

Executive
2020
Emoluments Total

Amarash Chetty 20000 20 000
Sunstone Capital Limited
(Registration number 2017/418473/06)
Financial Stalements for the year enced 29 February 2020
Detailed Income Statement
Figures in Rand Noie(s) 2020 2019
Ravenue
Didends recened from Qualitlying Companies 505 000 126000
Other operating galns (losses)
Fair value gains 455 642 -
Other operating expanses
Auctors remuneration {18 113) {27 280)
Bank charges 4 632) (6573)
Comptiation fees (20700) {21 500)
Dreclors fees {20 000) -
Compeance fees (8734) {20 685)
Financial Sector Conauct Authornity (FSCA) faes (6 652) (6293)
Insurance {30 730) -
Secretanal fees (4 638} {33 235)

(114 209) (115 541)
Operating profit (loss) 986 433 5450
Inferest ncome 11 139 951 33353
Profit (loss) before taxation 1126 3384 43312
Taxalion 12 {118 231) 22873
Profit (loss) for the year 1008 153 66 185




Sunstone Capital Limited
(Regisration number 2017/418473°06)
Financial Statemants for the year anded 29 February 2020

Supplementary Information

Net Asset Value Per Share
Ordinary B Ordinary UB Ordinary Total
Shares Shares Shares
Subecription for shares 11158 000 11 562 600 2816600 25 539200
Share IS5ue COSLS - prios years (716 291) - - (716 361)
10441608 11562600 2B16600 24322809
Retained eamings - prior years 4438 - - 4489
Share Issu costs - current yaar - (367 919} (89 637) (457 606)
Dividends recaived 605 000 - - 605 000
Dhidends paid (620 516) - - (620 916)
Net Income for the year 25741 - - 25741
Fair vale agjustment 435 642 - - 405 642
T=x payable (118231) - - (113231)
10833334 11 194681 2728913 24756928
Number of shares In 1ssue 11158 11012 2732 -
Net assal valua per share 970.90 101668 95887 -
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